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Jocil Limited

NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the Forty third Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Jocil Limited will be
held at the Registered Office of the Company, Dokiparru, Guntur - 522 438, A.P. on Wednesday, the
22" September, 2021 at 3.30 p.m. to transact the following business :

Ordinary Business :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
Balance Sheet as at that date together with the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare a Dividend for the year 2020-21.

3. To elect a Director in place of Sri P Narendranath Chowdary (DIN : 00015764 ) who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

Special Business:

4. To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31 March 2022 and in this
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Co.,
Hyderabad, the Cost Auditors appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of
the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31 March 2022, be paid the remuneration as
set out in the Statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution."

Notes :

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a
poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy form (provided with
this report) should reach the Registered Office of the Company duly completed not less than 48 hours
before the schedule time of the meeting.

2. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday,
the 11t September, 2021 to Saturday, the 18% September, 2021, both days inclusive.

3. Members are requested to notify any change in address immediately to the Company's Registered Office or
Registrar and Transfer Agents.
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10.

11.

Pursuant to Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the unclaimed dividend for the year ended
315t March, 2013 has been transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the
Central Government.

Pursuant to Investor Education and Protection Fund (uploading of information regarding Unpaid and
Unclaimed Amounts lying with Companies) Rules, 2012, the Company will provide/host the required
details of unclaimed amounts referred under Section 124(2) of Companies Act, 2013 in its website and also

in the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in the relevant form every year.

Pursuant to Section 124 of Companies Act, 2013, the unclaimed shares for the year ended 31 March 2013
have been transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the Central Government.
Members who wish to claim shares from IEPF are required to comply with the provisions specified under
IEPF (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules 2016.

Information about the Directors seeking reappointment at the 43 Annual General Meeting as required
under Listing Regulations is attached.

Holders of Shares/Deposits may nominate a person(s) in Form No. SH-13 / SH-14 as the case may be
(provided at the end of this report), in whose favour they wish to vest the Shares/Deposits on their death

subject to the provisions of Companies Act 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

The Dividend for the year ended 31st March 2021 as recommended by the Board, if sanctioned at the
Annual General Meeting, will be payable (subject to TDS as applicable) to those members whose names
appear in the Company's Register of Members on 18" September, 2021 as per details provided by Share
Transfer Agents (RTA). In respect of shares held in electronic form, the dividend will be payable on the basis
of beneficial ownership as per details furnished by the Depositories - National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) & Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for this purpose as on 10 September, 2021
after the close of business hours.

The Company is providing facility to the shareholders for voting by electronic means and the business may
be transacted through such voting. The process and manner of e-voting, time schedule etc., are at
Page No. 10.

Route map for attending the Annual General Meeting is provided at inside back cover page.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
A. Explanatory Statement as required under Sec. 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
Item No. 4:

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment of M/s. Narasimha
Murthy & Co., Cost Accountants, Hyderabad as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the
Company for the financial year ending 31 March 2022 on a remuneration of Rs.1,70,000 and reimbursement
of actual traveling, lodging & boarding and out of pocket expenses for attending the work.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors requires ratification by the shareholders of the
Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought by an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice
for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31 March 2022.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are in any way concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board recommends for approval of this Ordinary Resolution by the shareholders.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Tanuku P NARENDRANATH CHOWDARY
10 June 2021 Chairman

ABBREVIATED RESUME OF THE DIRETORS SEEKING REAPPOINTMENT
Sri Pendyala Narendranath Chowdary

Sri Pendyala Narendranath Chowdary joined the Board of Directors of the Company on 23-08-1996. He is a
graduate in Science and joined the Board of Directors of The Andhra Sugars Limited, the holding company, in
the year 1968. Subsequently he was elevated as Whole-time Director and continues to be so since the last 39
years. Sri P Narendranath Chowdary is presently the Chairman & Managing Director (CMD) of The Andhra
Sugars Limited. As CMD of the company, he is in overall charge of the company. During his tenure as Managing
Director he initiated and successfully completed various expansion and diversification programmes.

He is the Chairman of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee
and member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the
Company. He holds 25,000 equity shares of the Company as on 31t March 2021. Particulars of directorships
of other companies and memberships in committees held by him are given below.
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Name of the company Position Name of the committee Position
Sree Akkamamba Textiles Limited Chairman Stakeholders Grievance/
Relationship Committee | Chairman
The Andhra Farm Chemicals Corpn. Ltd. Chairman - -
Hindustan Allied Chemicals Ltd, Chairman - -
The Andhra Sugars Ltd. Chairman & Stakeholders Grievance / | Member
Managing Director | Relationship Committee
Corporate Social Member
Responsibility Committee
The Andhra Petrochemicals Limited Managing Director | Corporate Social Member
Responsibility Committee
Sree Satyanarayana Spinning Mills Ltd. Director - -
Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corporation Ltd | Director - -
Vibhas Polymers Pvt. Ltd Member - -

ADDENDUM -1 TO THE NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Special Business :

5. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special

Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Sri PA. Chowdary (DIN : 02936505) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as
Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 04-08-2021 pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, holds office up to the date of the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms
of Sec. 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) or any statutory modification thereof or any re-enactment of
the said Act and in respect of whom the Company has received a Notice in writing from a Member proposing
his candidature for the office of Director and subject to regulations contained in SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any amendments made thereto from time to
time be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all
acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
resolution."

. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:
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"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149 and 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (Act) or any statutory modification thereof or any re-enactment of the said Act, and the Rules made
there under, read with Schedule IV of the said Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, including any amendments made thereto from time to time Sri PA. Chowdary (DIN :
02936505) who meets the criteria of Independence as provided in Sec. 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013
be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 consecutive years
commencing from 22-09-2021 to 21-09-2026, not liable to retire by rotation."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all
acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this

resolution."
By Order of the Board of Directors
Place : Tanuku P NARENDRANATH CHOWDARY
Date : 04 August 2021. Chairman

ANNEXURE TO ADDENDUM-1 TO THE NOTICE
Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Item Nos.5&6:

Sri PA. Chowdary, IRS (Retd.) is a retired Chief Commissioner of Income Tax and has vast experience and has
held various positions in Income-Tax Department. He completed Masters Degree in Arts with specialisation in
English language and literature from Andhra University in 1966. He is holding Directorship on the Board of
The Andhra Sugars Ltd. since 2010.

The Company has received a notice pursuant to Sec. 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") from a Member
signifying his intention to propose the appointment of Sri PA. Chowdary as a Director of the Company.

Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, co-opted him as
Additional Director from 04-08-2021. He holds office up to the date of the date of the 43rd Annual General
Meeting. Both the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board were of the opinion after evaluation
of his qualifications, experience and other attributes that his induction on the Board would be of immense
benefit to the Company and it is desirable to avail his services as Director to strengthen the management of the
Company. The Board also considered it is advisable to appoint him as an Independent Director in view of his
fulfilling the criteria stipulated in the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to appointment of Independent Directors.
He is independent of the Management.

He is not debarred from holding office of Director by virtue of any SEBI Order or any other such authority.

A copy of the draft letter of appointment setting out the terms & conditions of his appointment is available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on any working day.
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Regulation 17(1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), (Amendment) Regulations,
2018 specifies that any listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of any person as a non-
executive director who has attained the age of seventy five years by way of a special resolution passed to that
effect. As Sri PA. Chowdary attained the age of seventy five years, the Board of Directors of the Company,
therefore, recommends passing of the resolutions as set out in Item Nos. 5 and 6 of the Notice above by way
of Special Resolutions.

Other Directorships held : Director, M/s. The Andhra Sugars Limited

Other Committeeships held : Member of Stakeholders Relationship Committee of
M/s. The Andhra Sugars Limited

Except Sri PA. Chowadary, no other Director, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives is or are deemed to
be interested or concerned in the Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Place : Tanuku P NARENDRANATH CHOWDARY
Date : 04 August 2021. Chairman

ADDENDUM -2 TO THE NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS
Special Business :

7. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) (Amendment), Regulations, 2018 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made thereunder, Sri K. Srinivasa Rao (DIN: 00381090) be continued as a Non-Executive,
Non-Independent Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation, notwithstanding that he has attained
the age of 75 years.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Directorship held by Sri K. Srinivasa Rao from 01-04-2019 upto date be and is
hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all
acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this

resolution".
By Order of the Board of Directors
Place : Tanuku P NARENDRANATH CHOWDARY
Date : 06 August 2021. Chairman
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ANNEXURE TO ADDENDUM - 2 TO THE NOTICE
Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
Item No. 7 :

Sri K. Srinivasa Rao has been a Director of the Company since 01-11-1980. He is an industrialist and having
vast experience in business and industry. During his tenure as Director on the Board of the Company he has
rendered very valuable services for promotion and development of the Company. As on date he is holding
3,25,092 equity shares of the Company.

Regulation 17 (1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) (Amendment), Regulations, 2018
specifies that any listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the Directorship of any person as a Non-
Executive Director who has attained the age of 75 years by way of a Special Resolution passed to that effect.

Sri K. Srinivasa Rao has attained the age of 75 years. In view of Regulation 17 (1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirement) (Amendment), Regulations, 2018, for continuation of Sri K. Srinivasa Rao as a
Non-Executive Director, consent of the Members would be required by way of Special Resolution.

Considering his vast experience, expertise and immense contribution to the growth of the Company, both
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board accorded their respective recommendations for his
continuation as a Non-Executive Director in the interest of the Company for your approval.

He is not debarred from holding office of Director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other such authority.

His latest reappointment was done at the Annual General Meeting held on 21-09-2019 wherein he was
reappointed unanimously by all the members. However, to comply with the procedural requirements of
Regulation 17 (1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) (Amendment), Regulations,
2018, both Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board accorded their respective recommendations
for ratification of his Directorship as a Non-Executive Director from 01-04-2021 upto date for your approval.

Particulars of Directorships of other Companies and Membership in Committees held by him are given below:

Name of the Company Position Name of the Committee Position
Amaravathi Textiles Pvt. Ltd. Managing Director - -
Geetha Cotton Mills Pvt. Ltd. Managing Director - -
Green Thumb Agro Pvt. Ltd. Managing Director - -
Guntur Textile Park Pvt. Ltd. Director - -
Kanakadurga Cotton Mills Pvt. Ltd. Director - -
Rangaraya Textile Park Pvt. Ltd. Additional Director - -

He does not hold any Directorships in any other listed entity.

Except Sri K. Srinivasa Rao, no other Director, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives is or are deemed to
be interested or concerned in the Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Place : Tanuku P NARENDRANATH CHOWDARY
Date : 06 August 2021. Chairman
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SHAREHOLDERS INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING

The instruction for Shareholders for remote e-voting are as under:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The voting period begins at 9.00 a.m. on 19-09-2021 and ends at 5.00 p.m.on 21-09-2021. During this
period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as
on the cut-off date (record date) of 15-09-2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the

meeting venue.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09-12-2020, under Regulation
44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all
shareholders' resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-
institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities
in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords
by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would
be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09-12-2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to
vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders
are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting
facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of Login Method

shareholders

Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
Shareholders existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting
holding securities page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
in Demat mode are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and
with CDSL click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.
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Individual
Shareholders
holding securities
in demat mode
with NSDL

2)

3)

4)

1

2)

3)

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option
for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information
provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see
e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME,
so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/Easi Registration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile
& Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will
be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://
eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home
page of e-Services is launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login"
which is available under 'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able
to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services and
you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which
is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
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Individual
Shareholders
(holding securities
in demat mode)
login through their
Depository
Participants

name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After
Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on
e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting

service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
securities in Demat mode helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
with CDSL or contact at 022-23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
securities in Demat mode with helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
NSDL toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(v) Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than individual shareholders holding in Demat form &

physical shareholders.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on "Shareholders" module.

3) Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c.  Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an

earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:
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For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical Form

PAN

Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

* Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or
contact Company/RTA.

Details OR your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Date of Birth * If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the
(DOB) member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in
instruction (v).
7) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

8)

9)

10)

1)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform.
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant Jocil Limited on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
"YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on
"CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting
page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
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17) Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians -Remote Voting

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required
to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the "Corporates" module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote
on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz;
Jocil@jocil.net, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(vi) PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES:

1.

For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder,

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP)

For Individual Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective

Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi,
Sr. Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25" Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal
Mill Compound, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.
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TDS on Dividend

Dear Shareholder,

We are pleased to inform you that the Board of Directors at their Meeting held on June 10, 2021 has recommended
a Final Dividend of Rs.3.00 (30%) per Equity Share of Rs.10 each for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021
and the said Final Dividend will be payable post approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on 22" September, 2021.

As you are aware that as per the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended by the Finance Act, 2020, dividends paid
or distributed by a Company after April 1, 2020 shall be taxable in the hands of the shareholders. The Company
shall therefore be required to deduct tax at source at the time of making the payment of the said Final Dividend,
if declared at the above AGM.

The TDS rate may vary depending on the residential status of the shareholder and the documents submitted to
the Company in accordance with the provisionsof the Act. The TDS for various categories of shareholders
along with required documents are provided in the below table:

Resident Shareholders:

Category of Tax Deduction | Exemption applicability / Documents required

shareholder Rate

Any resident 10% Update the PAN if not already done with depositaries (in case of
shareholder shares held in dematmode) and with the Company's Registrar and

Transfer Agents - M/S. XL Softech Systems Limited (in case of shares
held in physicalmode).

No deduction of taxes in the following cases -

* If dividend income to a resident Individual shareholder during
FY 2021-22does not exceed INR 5,000

* If shareholder is exempted from TDS provisions through any
circular or notification and provides an attested copy of the PAN
along with the documentary evidence in relation to the same.

Submitting NIL Eligible Shareholder providing Form 15G (applicable to any person

Form 15G/ other than a Company or a Firm)/ Form 15H (applicable to an

Form 15H Individual above the age of 60 years) - on fulfillment of prescribed
conditions.

Order under section | Rate provided | Lower/NIL withholding tax certificate obtained from Income Tax
197 of the Act in the order authorities.

Insurance Companies:| NIL Documentary evidence that the provisions of section 194 of the Act
Public & Other are not applicable.

Insurance Companies

Corporation NIL Documentary evidence that the person is covered under section
established by or 196 of the Act.
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Category of shareholder

Tax Deduction
Rate

Exemption applicability / Documents
required

under a Central Act which is, under any law
for the time being in force, exempt from
income- tax on its income.

PAN / specified person as per section
206AB of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Mutual Funds NIL Documentary evidence that the person is
covered under section 196 of the Act.

Alternative by Notification NIL Documentary evidence that the person is
Investment fund covered No. 51/2015 dated 25 June 2015.
Other shareholder without PAN / invalid 20%

Non-resident Shareholders:

Category of Tax Deduction | Exemption Applicability/ Documents required

Shareholder Rate

Any non- 20% Non-resident shareholders (including FPI and FlI shareholders) may opt

resident (plus applicable | for tax rate under Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement ("Tax Treaty").

shareholder surcharge and | The Tax Treaty rate shall be applied for tax deduction at source on

(Foreign cess) submission of following documents to the company

Institutional or

Investors, Investors Copy of the PAN Card, if any, allotted by the Indian authorities. Self-

Foreign Tax Treaty rate, | attested copy of Tax Residency Certificate (TRC) valid as on the AGM

Portfolio whichever is | date obtained from the tax authorities of the country of which the

(FII, FPI) lower shareholder is resident Self-declaration in Form 10F
Self-declaration confirming not having a Permanent Establishment in
India, eligibility to Tax Treaty benefit and do not / will not have place of
effective management in India.
TDS shall be recovered at 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) if
any of the above-mentioned documents are not provided.
The Company is not obligated to apply the Tax Treaty rates at the time of
tax deduction/withholding on dividend amounts. Application of Tax
Treaty rate shall depend upon the completeness of the documents
submitted by the non-resident shareholder and are in accordance with
the provisions of the Act.

Submitting Rate provided | Lower/NIL withholding tax certificate obtained from Income Tax

Order under in the Order | authorities.

section 195(3)

/197 of

the Act
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Please Note that:

a)

b)

C)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

TDS will be deducted @ 20% i.e., at twice the applicable rate on the amount of dividend payable where

the resident shareholders;

i) have not furnished valid PAN or

ii) have not filed with the Income Tax department their return of Income for the previous two financial
years and were subject to tax deduction / collection at source aggregating Rs.50,000 or more in each
of those financial years.

Shareholders holding shares under multiple accounts under different status / category and single PAN,

may note that, applicable TDS will be made on their entire cumulative holding in different accounts

The documents as mentioned in the above table are required to be sent to us at the Regd. Office of the

Company or may be sent by way of email to jocil@jocil.net on or before 10-09-2021 in order to enable

the Company to determine and deduct appropriate TDS / withholding tax rate. No communication/

documents on the tax determination / deduction shall be considered post 10-09-2021.

The Company will arrange to send TDS certificate to the shareholders in due course.

The tax credit can also be viewed in Form 26AS by logging in with your credentials (with valid PAN) at

TRACES https://www.tdscpc.gov.in/app/login.xhtml or the e-filing website of the Income Tax department

of India https://www.incometaxindiaefiling.gov.in/home.

In the event of any income tax demand (including interest, penalty, etc.) arising from any misrepresentation,

inaccuracy or omission of information provided by the Shareholder/s, such Shareholder/s will be responsible

to indemnify the Company and also, provide the Company with all information/documents and

co-operation in any appellate proceedings.

In case where shares held by intermediaries/ stock brokers and TDS is to be deducted in the PAN of the

beneficial shareholders then intermediaries/ stock brokers and beneficial shareholders will have to provide

a declaration in this regard. This declaration should be shared within 2 days from the record date. No

declaration shall be accepted after 2 days from the record date.

It may be further noted that in case the tax on said Final Dividend is deducted at a higher rate in the

absence of receipt of the aforementioned details/documents from you, there would still be an option

available with you to file the return of income and claim an appropriate refund, if eligible. No claim shall

lie against the Company for such taxes deducted.

We request your cooperation in this regard.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For Jocil Limited

Sd/-

(K. Raghuram)
Secretary & DGM (Finance)

Disclaimer: This communication shall not be treated as an advice from the Company or its Registrar & Transfer
Agent. Shareholders should obtain the tax advice related to their tax matters from a tax professional.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Forty third Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Statement of Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2021.

1.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

FINANCIAL RESULTS 2020-21 2019-20
Sales 56235.41 44232.12
Processing charges 301.62 392.86
Other income 131.53 560.56
Total income 56668.56 45185.54
Profit for the year before interest and depreciation 2169.77 2439.05
Interest (66.11) (82.18)
Depreciation (560.79) (592.05)
Profit before tax 1542.87 1764.82
Less:

Provision for current tax 470.00 500.00
Deferred tax - (credit) / charge (288.13) 8.99
Short provision of income tax in earlier years 0.04 6.64

Profit after tax 1360.96 1249.19

The turnover of the company for the year at Rs. 562.35 crores increased by 27.14% from Rs. 442.32
crores of the previous year. During the year, the sales volume of toilet soap and soap products have
increased by 20.34% due to favourable market conditions. The sales volume of fatty aciods decreased
marginally by 2.75% . Profit Before Interest and Tax (PBIT) has decreased slightly from Rs. 2439.05 lakhs
to Rs. 2169.78 lakhs due to decrease in other income. The Profit Before Tax (PBT) has decreased to Rs.
15.43 crores as compared to Rs. 17.65 crores in the previous year for the reason as state above.

The appropriations from the profit are as detailed below.
(Rs. in Lakhs)

2020-21 2019-20
Profit after tax (including other comprehensive income) 1825.29 789.67
Balance brought forward from previous year 3640.60 2958.00
Profit for appropriations 5465.89 3747.67
APPROPRIATIONS
Dividend (accounted in the year of payment)* 266.43 88.81

* In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS, dividend is to be accounted in the year of payment.
Hence, dividend paid during the year is given instead of dividend declared during the year.
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Provision for tax on distributed profits @ 20.55529% - 18.26
on dividend (accounted in the year of payment)

Balance carried forward 5199.46 3640.60
TOTAL ' 5465.89 3747.67
Authorized capital 1000.00 1000.00
Paid-up capital 888.16 888.16
Reserves & surplus 18722.87 17164.02

DIVIDEND & RESERVES

The Board of Directors have recommend for the approval of the shareholders of the Company for
payment of dividend for the year ended 31-03-2021, at Rs.3.00 per equity share of Rs.10 each, which
aggregates to Rs.2,66,43,450 on 88,81,150 equity shares of the Company. In the previous year also,
the Company paid dividend at Rs.3.00 per equity share of Rs.10 each on 88,81,150 shares amounting
to Rs.2,66,43,450. Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to reserves for the Financial
Year ended on March 31, 2021.

OPERATIONS 2020-21 2019-20
MT MT

Production

(including processed on jobwork)

a) Fatty acids 69120 67810
b) Toilet soap & soap products 50644 44983
¢) Biomass power-kwh 29357562 31961284
d) Wind power-kwh 11870213 12428464
By-products:

Glycerine 2771 2402
Fatty acid pitch 2387 2603
Sales

a) Fatty acids 43817 45160
b) Toilet soap & soap products 42389 35224
¢) Biomass power-kwh 10697100 12229800
d) Wind power-kwh 11777565 12302213
By-products:

Glycerine 1610 1502
Fatty acid pitch 2682 2402
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20

OUTLOOK
Fatty Acids and Soap

There is an improvement in sales volume of soap products, glycerine and fatty acid pitch. However, sales
volume of fatty acids are slightly lower than that of previous year. Even though there is an overall
improvement of production and sale volumes, the profitability is lower due to decrease in other income
when compared to previous year. GST refund/benefit is continuing for North-eastern states and Jammu
& Kashmir and will be available upto June 30, 2027. Hitherto, manufacturers in non-exempt areas
doing job work for customers, were finding it difficult to market their capacities. However, after
introduction of GST the value of benefits of exemption has comedown considerably. As a result, the
opportunities have improved for manufacturers in non-exempt areas especially for those catering to the
Southern markets as these benefits may not be attractive enough for the value addition and to overcome
logistical costs. Accordingly, Company is able to sustain orders for soap products from major customers.

The present market conditions are expected to continue for some more time.

Cost of raw materials is a major component in total cost of production and the fluctuation in raw
material prices is a serious cause of concern to the company particularly when the customers demand
long term forward contracts while the same is not possible with the raw material suppliers. There is stiff
competition from manufacturers particularly from those having backward integration which gives them

a cost advantage.

The Company enters into contracts for doing job-work for Fatty Acids, Soap Noodles and Toilet Soap for
major customers wherein the customers themselves supply/cover raw materials required for the total
process and the Company receives processing charges for the manufacture of final products. This helps
to safeguard against fluctuations in raw material prices. Barring unforeseen circumstances the market is

expected to continue the same trend in the coming months.
Biomass Power Plant

During the year under review, the performance of the Biomass Power Plant has declined marginally
when compared to the previous year. The generation from the plant during the year has decreased by
26.04 lakh units, an 8.15% decrease when compared to the previous year. Existing Distributed Control
System (DCS) is upgraded due to its redundancy. Commissioning activities of new DCS were completed
on 28.1.2021 and is functioning smoothly. Export of power to APSPDCL was stopped from 07 July
2019 to 27 July 2019 and from 15 January 2020 to 26 January 2020 for replacement of DCS and

scheduled maintenance.

Power Purchase Agreement entered with APSPDCL by the Company for export of Power for a period of
20 years expired on 25 March 2021.Company approached APSPDCL and AP TRANSCO for extension
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of PPA. However APSPDCL is not willing to extend the agreement even at reduced tariff. Hence Company

is in the process of finalising a third party for sale of power.
Wind Energy Generators (WEG)

Power generation during the year from the four Wind Energy Generators (WEGs) of 6.3 MW capacity
has marginally declined as compared to the previous year. During the year, the power generation from
all the four WEGs is 118.70 lakh units as compared to 124.28 lakh units in the previous year due to
lower wind velocity. The backdown of WEGs for want of evacuation facilities amounts to 8.95% of

available time during the year 2020-21 as compared to 5.38% in the previous year.
Impact of COVID-19

As stated in the previous annual report, in view of permission granted to our Company by the District
Collector due to inclusion of our products under essential commodities list for containment of
COVID-19 there is no direct material impact of lockdown to our Company. Restrictions imposed by the
State Government in view of second wave of COVID-19 has also not impacted our Company as it is a

continuous production generation unit.
FINANCE AND STATUTORY COMPLIANCES

The Company availed working capital facilities under consortium arrangement with Union Bank of India
and State Bank of India and the accounts are in order. The company complied with all the legal

requirements and there are no outstanding statutory dues as on 31 March 2021.

During the year there have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future.

CREDIT RATING

During the year the Credit Rating Agency CARE revised the credit rating for various facilities as detailed

hereunder.
Nature of Facilities Rating Assigned
2020-21 2019-20
1. Working capital facilities

i) Long term facilities CARE A-: Positive CARE A -, Stable
(adequate degree of safety (adequate degree of safety
regarding timely servicing of regarding timely servicing of
financial obligations) financial obligations)
[Positive outlook indicates an [Stable outlook indicates
expected upgrade in the credit expected stability (or retention)
ratings in the medium term on of the credit ratings in the

Contd...
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Nature of Facilities Rating Assigned

2020-21 2019-20
account of expected positive medium term on account of
impact on the credit risk profile stable credit risk profile of the

of the entity in the medium term] entity in the medium term]

ii) Short term facilities CARE A2+ CARE A2
(Strong degree of safety (Strong degree of safety
regarding timely payment of regarding timely payment of
financial obligations) financial obligations)
2. Fixed deposits CARE A2+(FD) CARE A2 (FD)

(Strong degree of safety (Strong degree of safety
regarding timely payment of regarding timely payment of
financial obligations) financial obligations)

7. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy inline with the requirements of The
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013. The
Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. During the year the Company has not received any complaints on sexual harassment of women
at the workplace.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established Vigil Mechanism as required under Sec. 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 for directors and employees to report genuine concerns as prescribed in the policy. The policy
provides adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and makes
provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional

cases.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

a) In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and Articles of Association of the
Company, Sri P Narendranath Chowdary, Chairman retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

b) The Company held Four Board Meetings during the year. Board Meeting dates and attendance
particulars are available in the report on Corporate Governance.

¢) The Company has received declarations from all the five Independent Directors confirming that
he/she meets the criteria of independence as provided under sub-section 6 of Sec. 149 of the
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Companies Act, 2013 at the first meeting of the Board in which he/she participated as a Director
and thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year or whenever there is any
change in the circumstances which may affect his/her status as an Independent Director.

d) The Audit Committee consists of 3 Non-Executive Directors of which 2 are Independent Directors.

Sri V.S. Raju, Independent Director is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The remaining
2 members are Sri Mullapudi Thimmaraja, Non-Executive Director and Sri Subbarao V. Tipirneni,
Independent Director. The Board accepted all the recommendations of the Audit Committee during
the year.

e) During the year under review, the Company is having the following persons as Key Managerial
Personnel under Sec. 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Name of the Official DIN / Membership No. Designation

Sri J. Murali Mohan 00114341 Managing Director

Sri K. Raghuram FCS - 6712 Secretary & Dy. General
Manager (Fin.) (CFO)

10. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

1.

12.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors as required under Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013 was held on 25 January 2021, without the presence of Non-Independent Directors. This meeting
was conducted to review and evaluate (a) the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the
Board as a whole, (b) the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking in to account the
views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors and (c) assess the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary
for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The Independent Directors expressed
their satisfaction with the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole and
Lead Independent Director briefed the outcome of the meeting to the Board.

AUDITORS

M/s. Chevuturi Associates, Chartered Accountants, Vijayawada were appointed as Auditors for a
period of 5 years at the 39" Annual General Meeting held on 28 September 2017 till the year 2021-
22. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the audit report issued by them for
the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDITORS

Company is maintaining cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub section (1) of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Co., Cost Accountants, Hyderabad
are conducting the cost audit for applicable products during the year. They are eligible for re-
appointment as Cost Auditors for the year 2020-21. There are no qualifications, reservations or
adverse remarks in the audit report issued by them for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.
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13. SECRETARIAL AUDIT
M/s. Nekkanti S.R.V.V.S. Narayana & Co., Company Secretaries, Hyderabad were appointed as Auditors
for secretarial audit for the year 2020-21 under Sec. 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and they have
submitted their report. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the audit report
issued by them for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

14. In accordance with the notification dated 28" August 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
with regard to commencement of provisions of clause (ii) of Section 23 of the Companies (Amendment)
Act, 2017 with effect from 28" August 2020 and pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act,
2013, Annual Return has been placed in the website of the Company and weblink for the same is
www.//jocil.in/AnnualReturn2021.pdf

15. The information required to be included in the Board of Directors Report under the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made there under is annexed and forms part of this report, details of which are as
follows.

,S\ll' Particulars Section Rule | Annexure

0. No.

1 Company policy on Directors appointment and remuneration etc.| 134 (3) (e) 1
provided under sub-sections (3) and (4) of Section 178
Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186| 134 (3) (g)
Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties 134 (3) (h)
referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 in Form AOC -2.
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 8(2)

4 | Conservation of energy, technology absorption and Foreign 134 (3) (m) 4
Exchange earnings and outgo.
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 8 (3) (A),

(B) & (C)

5 | Risk management policy for the company including 134 (3) (n) 5
identification therein of elements of risk if any.

6 | Corporate Social Responsibility policy and initiatives taken 134 (3) (0) 6
during the year.
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility policy) Rules, 2014 8 (1)

7 | Statement indicating the manner in which formal annual 134 (3) (p) 7
evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance
and that of its committees and Individual Directors.
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 8 (4)

8 | Financial summary or highlights. 134 (3) (q) 8
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 8 (5) (i)
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SNLO. Particulars Section Rule Annﬁ)gjre

9 | Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. | 134 (3) (q) 9
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 8 (5) (v)

& (vi)

10 | Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median 197 (12) 10
employee's remuneration and such other details.
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 5 (1)
Personnel) Rules, 2014

11 | Particulars of employees in receipt of remuneration not less 197 (12) 11
than Rs. 8,50,000 per month or Rs. 1,02,00,000 per year etc.
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 5(2)
Personnel) Rules, 2014

12 | Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3. 204 (1) 12
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 9 (1)
Personnel) Rules, 2014

16. INFORMTION UNDER LISTING REGULATIONS

The Company is committed to maintain the standards of Corporate Governance prescribed under SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulations). The

information required to be included in the Annual Report under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations

are as follows.

SI.No. | Particulars Para Exhibit No.
1 Related Party Disclosures A 13
2 Management Discussion and Analysis Report B 14
3 Report on Corporate Governance C 15
4 Declaration by the Managing Director that all Board D 16

Members and Senior Management Personnel affirmed their
compliance to the Code of Conduct.
Compliance Certificate from Auditors on Corporate Governance E 17
6 Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account / F 18
Unclaimed Suspense Account
7 Details of shares transferred to IEPF G 19

The Company is having a policy to deal with Related Party Transactions and the same may be viewed in
the Company's website www.jocil.in. Accounts for disclosures in compliance with the Accounting

Standards on "Related Party Disclosures" are given in note no. 34.
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17.

18.

19.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to
Directors' Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that -

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period ;

¢) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

Explanation : For the purpose of this clause, the term "internal financial controls" means the policies and
procedures adopted by the company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information.

f) and, the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PERSONNEL

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation to all the employees of the Company for their
sustained efforts and valuable contribution to the performance of the Company during the year.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the wholehearted and sincere cooperation
the Company received from various departments of Central and State Governments, Bankers,
Auditors,Dealers and Suppliers of the Company. The Directors also would like to express their grateful
appreciation for the guidance and cooperation received from the Holding Company, M/s. The Andhra
Sugars Limited, Tanuku.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Tanuku P NARENDRANATH CHOWDARY
10 June 2021 Chairman
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Annexure - 1

COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
(Sec. 134(3)(e) and Sec. 178 (3 & 4) of Companies Act, 2013)

The Board of Directors constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of four directors of

which two are independent directors. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee formulated a criteria for

determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and a policy on remuneration for

the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other employees as detailed below and recommended to

the Board and the Board approved the same.

Criteria for appointment :

a)

b)

@)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

The appointee should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position they
consider for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise
and experience possessed by a person is appropriate for the concerned position.

Managing Director or Executive Director can be appointed for a term not exceeding five years at a time.
No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of the term.

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent
Director, provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be
appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a
Whole-time Director of a listed company.

The Committee shall specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of the Board, its
Committees and individual Directors to be carried out by the Board and review its implementation and
compliance.

The Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director,
KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the rules and
regulations.

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion
to utilize the services of KMP, Senior Management Personnel even after attaining the retirement age,
for the benefit of the Company.
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Policy on remuneration :

a)

b)

o)

d)

e)

f

The remuneration/compensation/commission etc., to the Managing Director / Whole-time Director,
KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to
the Board for approval. The remuneration/compensation/commission etc., shall be subject to the
prior / post approval of the Shareholders of the Company and Central Government, as may be
required by any Statute.

The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing Director/ Whole-time Director shall be
in accordance with the percentage/conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the Company
and as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder.

The Managing Director/Whole-time Director/KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible
for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee.

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate and if it is not able to
comply, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Managing Director/ Whole-time Director in
accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 with such provisions.

The Non-Executive/Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending
meetings of Board or Committee thereof, provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the
amount prescribed under Articles of Association of the Company. In addition to the remuneration
payable as sitting fees they shall be paid traveling / hotel and other expenses as determined by the
Board from time to time for attending and returning from, meetings of the Board of Directors or any
committee thereof or in connection with the business of the Company.

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

Annexure - 2

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS DURING THE YEAR
Section 134(3)(g) and Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013
Para A(2) of Schedule V to Listing Regulations

SI.No.

Name of the Company Amount Rs. Remarks

Particulars of loans given - NIL - -

During the year the Company has not made any investments, not given any guarantees and not provided any

security to any person or other body corporate.
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Annexure - 3

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm'’s length transactions
under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’'s length basis  : Nil
a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
¢) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value if any
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions
f) Date(s) of approval by Board
g) Amount paid as advances, if any
h) Date on which the resolution was passed in general meeting as required

under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions - Nil
at arm'’s length basis
a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
¢) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value if any
e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any

f) Amount paid as advances, if any

For Jocil Limited

Tanuku (P NARENDRANATH CHOWDARY)
10 June 2021 Chairman
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A)

B)

(@)

30

Annexure - 4

REPORT ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

* KX

Conservation of energy —

i)

i)

iii)

The steps taken or impact on conservation of
energy

The steps taken by the company for utilising
alternate sources of energy;

The capital investment on energy conservation
equipment;

Technology absorption —

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Efforts made towards technology absorption

Benefits derived like product improvement, cost
reduction, product development or import
substitution

In case of imported technology (imported during
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year)

(@) the details of technology imported,;

(b) the year of import

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas, where absorption

has not taken place and the reasons thereof;

The expenditure incurred on Research and
Development (Rs.in lakhs)

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-

i)

i)

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual
inflows during the year and

The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in
terms of actual outflows

Heat recovered from the Distilled Fatty Acids
is used to increase the concentraton of sweet
water.

Nil

Nil

Indigenous technology available is being

utilised and upgraded continuously to satisfy
the needs of the customers

The Company is able to improve customer
acceptability of the products

Nil

Nil

Rs. 11,65,66,762

Rs. 35,87,06,163
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Annexure - 5
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
(Sec. 134(3)(n) of Companies Act, 2013)

The Company formulated Risk Management Policy on the recommendations of the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors. The Policy provides for review of the operations of the organization, identification of
potential threats to the organization, estimating the likelihood of their occurrence and then taking appropriate
actions to address the most likely threats. The Policy also provides for periodical placement of such a report
before the Board for its review and to ensure that management controls risk through means of a properly
defined frame work.

The Board is of the opinion that the risk of fire to plant & machinery and current assets, fluctuations in raw
material prices and changes in Government Policies are the elements of risk that may threaten the existence of
the Company.

Annexure - 6

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR 2020-21
(Section 134 (3)(0) of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 (1) of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014)

1. A brief outline on CSR policy of the Company.

Participation of business enterprises in building economic, social and environmental capital will enhance
social sustainability. Design and implement CSR programs for sustainable development in the areas of
health, safety, environment, poverty eradication, skill development, resource enhancing etc.,

The Company is extending financial assistance to educational Institutions/Trusts for promotion of education
irrespective of religion, caste etc.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee :

Number of meetings | Number of meetings

’j:) Name of Director De;}gg?:;‘z:o/ r’;fit“re of CSR Committee |  of CSR Committee
) P held during the year |attended during the year
1 | P Narendranath Chairman,
Chowdary Non-Executive Director 1 1
2 | J. Murali Mohan Member,
Executive Director 1 1
3 | Mullapudi Thimmaraja | Member,
Non-Executive Director 1 -
4 | P Venkateswara Rao Member, Independent,
Non-Executive Director 1 1
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of : Web link to the CSR policy and projects or
CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects programs of the company is
approved by the board are disclosed on the 'http://jocil.in/CSR POLICY % 20.pdf".

website of the company
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Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in

pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social

responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of

rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Not Applicable

Total

Nil

Sl. ] ) Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off
Financial Year . ) . . . . . .

No. preceding financial years (in Rs.) | for the financial year, if any (in Rs.)

1.

2.

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) :

Net Profit during the year

Year u/s.198 (Adjusted)
Rs.
2019-20 16,96,07,995
2018-19 2,16,37,064
2017-18 4,74,61,782
Total for 3 years 23,87,06,841
Average profit 7,95,68,947

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the

previous financial years.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year :

Rs.15,91,379
Nil

Nil
Rs.15,91,379

Total amount

Financial Year

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

spent for the

Total Amount transferred to Unspent
CSR Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VIl as per second proviso to Section 135(5).

(in Rs.)

Amount

Date of transfer

Name of the

A t
Fund moun

Date of transfer

- Nil -




(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year :

Jocil Limited

M | @) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
Sl | Name | Item Local |Location of| Project | Amount|Amount| Amount | Mode of Mode of
No. |of the| from area |the project| duration |allocated|spent in transferred| Implemen- | Implementation -
Project| the list |(Yes/No) for the the to Un- tation. Through
of project | currentispent CSR|  Direct Implementing
activities (in Rs.) |financial| Account | (Yes/No.) Agency
in Year | for the
Schedule (in Rs.) |project as
VIl to per
the Act. iegc;u(;n Name CSR
State| Dist. . R( ) Registrati
(in Rs.) on number
1
2 -Nil-
3
ot L |
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year.
(1 (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
SIl. | Name of the | Item from | Local Location of the Amount Mode of | Mode of implementation
No. Project the list of | area project spent for | implemen- |- Through implementing
activities (Yes/ the project tation Direct agency
in schedule | No.) (in Rs.) (Yes/No.)
VIl to the CSR
Act State District Name registration
number
1. Disaster Item (xii) Yes AP Guntur 4,30,747 Yes
Management
Activity
COVID-19
2. | Providing Item (i) No | AP | Venkata- | 11,60,632 No Sree CSR
: . . 100007451
Medical care in rayapuram, Mullapudi
the field of Tanuku, Kamala Devi
cardiology to West Cardiovascular
the sick, poor, Godavari Centre,
disabled and District Venkatara-
handicapped puram,
without Tanuku-
distinction of 534215,
caste, creed, W.G.Dist.
race & religion AP
Total 15,91,379
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year

(8b+8c+8d+8e)

Not Applicable

Rs.15,91,379
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(g) Excess amount for set off, if any :

SI.No. Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit

of the company as per section 135(5) 15,91,379
(i) Total amount spent for the

Financial Year 15,91,379
(iii) Excess amount spent for the

financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects

or programmes or activities of the

previous financial years, if any Nil
(v) Amount available for set off in

succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

9.  (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years :
Amount A t Amount transferred to any fund Amount
transferred to mer specified under Schedule VIl as per | femaining to be
Proceeding | nspent CSR spent in the P . . P spent in
Sl. e P ti section 135(6), if any. P
Financial | Account under | _"€POTIN8 succeedin
No. X Financial Year : eoing
Year section 135(6) (in Rs) Name of Amount Date of financial year
(in Rs.) ' the Fund (in Rs.) Transfer (in Rs.)
1.
2. - Nil -
Total

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial

year(s) :
(1 (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Total Amount spent ann:glj:z/e
Financial Year ota on the project Status of the
. Name of |. ; . amount . spent at the B
Sl. Project in which the | Project in the project -
the ! -~ |allocated for . end of
No. ID ) project was |duration - reporting . Completed/
Project the project. | .. ' . reporting -
commenced ) Financial Year |_. ) Ongoing.
(in Rs.) (in Rs.) Financial Year
’ (in Rs.)
1
2. - Nil -
3.
Total
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year.
(asset wise details)
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary underwhose : Not Applicable
name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired
(including complete address and location of the capital asset).

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profits as per
section 135(5). -Not Applicable-

Sd/-xxx Sd/-
Managing Director Chairman CSR Committee

Annexure - 7

STATEMENT ON EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS
( Sec. 134 (3)(p) of Companies Act 2013 and Rule 8(4) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 )

The Company is having Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated by Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy
contains criteria for evaluation of the Board of its own performance during the year and that of its Committees
and Individual Directors.

In accordance with the criteria for evaluation contained in the policy of the Company the Board of Directors
carried out evaluation of its own performance during the year and that of its four Committees - Audit
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The performance evaluation of the Individual Directors was also carried
out as per the evaluation criteria contained in the policy.
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Annexure - 8
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
(U/s.134(3) (q) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 (5) (i) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ending 31st March

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

OPERATING RESULTS

Gross Sales & Other Income 43634 46088 42201 37014 43543 41478 35060 40412 45186 56668
Operating Profit 3090 3677 2819 2730 3631 1885 1277 817 2439 2170
Depreciation 888 1001 1026 667 84 706 653 572 592 561
Interest 342 332 163 % 113 160 129 119 8 66
Profit before Tax 1860 2294 1630 1968 2714 1019 4% 126 1765 1543
Profit after Tax 1250 1462 1133 1311 1794 821 40 317 1249 1361
Dividend paid 44 B33 M4 B33 62 266 178 8 266 26
Dividend rate (%) 50 60 50 60 70 30 20 10 30 30
Retained Earnings 734 88 614 6/0 1045 501 1% 210 983 109
Earning per Share (Rs.) 1408 1646 1275 1476 2020 924 462 357 1407 1532
Return on Net worth(%) 898 992 745 831 1073 466 228 176 668 682
Debt Equity Ratio 022 024 008 007 005 016 004 005 004 001
Book Value (Rs.) 156.72 165.95 17125 17758 188.20 198.23 202.10 202.74 210.53 224.83

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Equity Capital 88 833 83 838 8 833 88 88 88 8B
Reserves 13030 13850 14320 14883 15826 16717 17060 17117 17809 19080
Borrowings 3008 3569 1211 1051 904 2842 665 833 831 204
Net Capital Employed 16926 18307 16419 16822 17618 20447 18613 18838 19528 20172
APLLICATION OF FUNDS

Gross Fixed Assets 16324 17391 17433 17502 7183 7609 7689 8094 8623 9065
Depreciation 8141 9037 10011 10705 804 1511 2163 2735 3327 3697
Net Fixed Assets 8183 8354 7422 6797 6379 6098 5526 5359 5296 5368
Net Current Assets & Investments 8743 9953 8997 10025 11239 14379 13087 13479 14232 14804
Net Assets Employed 16926 18307 16419 16822 17618 20477 18613 18838 19528 20172
TO EXCHEQUER

Excise Duty & Service Tax 4986 5320 4576 4866 4430 3995 1023 - - -
Sales Tax and Other Taxes 1156 961 741 604 629 566 220 - - -
GST - - - - - - 3658 5623 7173 10137
Income Tax 600 850 650 700 1025 255 130 47 500 470
Total Taxes & Duties 6742 7131 59%7 6170 6084 4816 5031 5670 7673 10607
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

REPORT ON FIXED DEPOSITS

Jocil Limited

Annexure - 9

[Section 134(3) (q) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(5) (v) & (vi) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

The details, relating to deposits covered under Chapter V
of the Companies Act, 2013

(a) Deposits accepted during the year
(b) Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year

(c) Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or
payment of interest thereon during the year and if so, number
of such cases and the total amount involved-

(i) At the beginning of the year
(i)  Maximum during the year
(iii) At the end of the year

The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the
requirement of Chapter V of the Act

Rs.

: 2,03,72,824
: NIL

: No defaults in repayment of

deposits or payment of interest
thereon.

: NIL
. NIL
: NIL

: NIL

Annexure- 10

RATIO OF THE REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

AND SUCH OTHER DETAILS

(Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 (1) of the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

* ¥ %

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the

median remuneration of the employees of the company

for the financial year

Sri J. Murali Mohan - Managing Director 0 108 : 1
(all the other directors are non-executive directors)

The percentage increase/(decrease) in remuneration of
each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the
financial year

Sri J. Murali Mohan, Managing Director & 0 20.35%
Sri K. Raghuram, Secretary & DGM (Finance) 0 10.97%
The percentage increase/(decrease) in the median

remuneration of employees in the financial year 2 2.57%
The number of permanent employees on the rolls of . 767
company

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the : Yes

remuneration policy of the company
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Annexure - 11

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER RULE 5(2) OF
THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION) RULES, 2014

i)  Name : Sri J. Murali Mohan

ii) Designation : Managing Director

iii) Remuneration received : Rs. 1,80,89,905

iv) Nature of employment, whether contractual or otherwise; . Contractual for a period of three years
v) Qualifications : B.Tech (Chem. Engg.) & MBA

vi) Experience : 42 Years

vii) Date of commencement of employment : 16-02-1990

viii) Age . 71 Years

ix) Last employment held before joining the company : Marketing Manager,

ITC Ltd. (ILTD Division)
X)  The percentage of equity shares held by the
employee in the company within the meaning
of clause (iii) of sub-rule (2) of Rule (5) : Not applicable
xi)  Whether relative of any director or manager of

the company and if so, name of such director or manager; . -No-

Annexure - 12
FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended 31st March 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

Jocil Limited,
Dokiparru — 522 438,
Medikondur Mandal,
Guntur District,
Andhra Pradesh.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Jocil Limited (hereinafter called "the company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.
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Based on our verification of Jocil Limited's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 ("Audit Period")
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 and made available to us, according to the
provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

(vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company, namely:
(a) The Hazardous Wastes (management, Handing and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008
(b) Drugs & Cosmetics Act, 2002 and rules made there under
(c) Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and rules made there under

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We report that, during the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines and Standards mentioned above.

We further report that, there were no events / actions in pursuance of:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employe stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
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(c) The securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008:

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009); and
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
We further report that:

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance
of financial records and books of accounts have not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been
subejct to review by the statutory financial auditors, tax auditors, and other designated professionals

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful particupation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were
unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and
also on the review of the compliance certificates / reports taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company, in our opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

We further report that, during the audit period, there were no other specific events / actions in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. having major bearing on the Company's affairs.

For NEKKANTI S.R.V.V.S. NARAYANA & CO.
Company Secretaries
(NEKKANTI S.R.V.V.S. NARAYANA)
Date : 31-05-2021 Proprietor
Place : Hyderabad M.No.F7157, C.PNo0.7839
UDIN: FO07157C000398757

Note:

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE - A
To
The Members,
Jocil Limited,
Dokiparru — 522 438,
Medikondur Mandal,
Guntur District,
Andhra Pradesh

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

7. Due to prevailing circumstance of COVDI-19 pandemic, the audit was conducted based on the verification
of the Company's books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed, documents and other records
furnished by / obtained from the Company electronically and also the information provided by the Company
and its officers by audio and visual means.

For NEKKANTI S.R.V.V.S. NARAYANA & CO.
Company Secretaries
(NEKKANTI S.R.V.V.S. NARAYANA)
Date : 31-05-2021 Proprietor
Place : Hyderabad M.No.F7157, C.PNo0.7839
UDIN: FO07157C000398757

Annexure - 13

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE UNDER PARA A OF SCHEDULE V TO LISTING REGULATIONS
(Amount in Rs.)

Amount of loans / Max. amount of loans /
Name of the Company / ) .
L . . advances / investments| advances / investments
Firm in which the Directors ) . i
No. are interested / outstanding as on | outstanding during the
31-03-2021 year 2020-21

Nil
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Annexure - 14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Industry Structure and Developments :

The Company is engaged in the manufacture of Stearic Acid, Fatty Acids, Refined Glycerine, Soap
Noodles, Toilet Soap, Industrial Oxygen and in the generation of Power from biomass and wind. Non
edible vegetable oils and fatty acid distillates, both indigenous and imported, are used as raw materials
for the manufacture of the finished products. The products manufactured are marketed directly from the
factory as well as through Depots and C & F Agents located in major cities across the country. The
Company also undertakes to manufacture Soap Noodles and Toilet Soap on job work for reputed
customers.

The Company is having 6 Mw Biomass Cogeneration Captive Power Plant located within the factory
premises and the surplus power is sold to APSPDCL. (However w.e.f. 26-03-2021 the sale of power to
APSPDCL is stopped due to completion of Power Puchase Aggrement (PPA) entered with them.) It is
also having four Wind Energy Generators (WEGs) of total 6.30 MW setup in Tamil Nadu and the power
generated from these plants is sold to Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation Limited
(TANGEDCO).

Majority of the Fatty Acids produced in the industry are consumed as raw material in Toilet Soap industry
for making Toilet Soap. Hence performance of that industry will also have its impact on the demand for
fatty acids. Stearic Acid is used in rubber, plastic, metal polish, cosmetics, paints and number of other
industries and any changes in demand by the major user industries may lead to fluctuations in demand.
Glycerine and Industrial Oxygen are by-products.

The country is short of both edible and non-edible vegetable oils. However, in India, refineries with
huge capacities have been setup for processing Crude Vegetable Oils like Palm Oil mainly imported from
Malaysia and Indonesia and some that is available domestically. By-products generated from these
refineries viz., RBD Palm Stearine (RBDPS) and Palm Fatty Acid Distillate (PFAD) are the raw materials to
the Company. As a result, the Company indirectly depends on imports of crude vegetable oils.

Consequently the supply and demand position in the international market for vegetable oils influence
the domestic market.

The Malaysian and Indonesian Governments impose export duty varying from time to time on crude oil
to encourage value addition within their country prior to exports. This turns out as additional cost to
consumers in India. Further, fluctuation in crude oil (fossil) prices also have impact on edible and
nonedible oils due to their usage in production of bio-fuels.

Inverted duty structure for imports (higher duty for raw materials and lower duty for finished products)
is @ major problem for manufacturers of Soap Noodles. There is no customs duty on Soap Noodles
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imported (vide Customs Notification No. 46/2011, as amended from time to time, imported from Asian
Countries under Indian Free Trade Agreement) where as Lauric Acid one of the important raw materials
in the manufacture of Soap Noodles attracts customs duty at 8.25% (including 10% social welfare
surcharge on customs duty). As a result indigenous manufacturers are placed at a disadvantage in
competing with import of Soap Noodles.

The fuels intended for running the biomass power plant are Rice Husk, fire wood like Cotton Stalk, Chili
Stalk, English Thumma etc., available in the surrounding areas. Their availability is seasonal and also
depends on availability of labour and farm works during the season. Transportation and storage of
biomass fuels are the other problems due to their low bulk density. They are also fire hazardous.

Scheduled maintenance activities are being carried out regularly for optimum capacity utilization of the
power plant. Steam and power requirements of Process Plants are met from the Biomass Power Plant.
Existing Distributed Control System (DCS) is upgraded due to its redundancy. Commissioning activities
of new DCS are completed on 28.1.2021 and is functioning smoothly.

Continuous development efforts are being made to absorb the latest technologies and practices. Quality
Management Systems (QMS) Standard ISO 9001:2015 obtained from a renowned certification agency,
TUV SUD South Asia Pvt. Ltd., Mumbai is being followed by the Company, Det Norske Veritas (DNV)
also confirmed 1SO 22716:2007 on the Company for following GMP Guidelines of Standard in the
manufacture of Glycerine.

To increase the frequency of testing to have higher reliability and consistency, Company has started
setting up of its own Micro-organism Testing Equipment in Company's laboratory in a separate chamber
for testing raw materials, semi-finished soap products, soap noodles and finished soap products at an
estimated cost of Rs.25 lakhs. It is expected to commence the operations of Micro Lab by end September,
2021.

Opportunities and Threats:

Raw material cost is a major component in the cost of production of fatty acids and soap products.
International market prices of edible and non-edible oils highly influence the raw material prices in the
domestic market. During the year the market witnessed very wide fluctuations in raw material prices.
Competitors having backward integration have an edge over the Company because of cheaper and
secured source of raw materials. Volatility of raw material prices and demand by bulk consumers of fatty
acids and soap products for contracts of large quantities for future delivery is a big challenge to the
Company when similar facility for advance coverage of raw materials is not available to hedge the risks.
Retention of high volume customers is considered very important and hence very competitive rates are
having to be quoted with hidden risks.

GST refund/benefit is continuing for the North-eastern States and Jammu & Kashmir and will be available
upto June 30, 2027. However, manufacturing of Soap Noodles and low cost soap in Northeast for
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southern markets does not seem to be viable as the value of the exemption benefits after introduction
of GST is not enough for the value addition and to overcome the logistical costs. Due to the good
rapport with major customers, our company is able sustain orders for soap products and accordingly,
capacity utilization of Soap Plant has not been impacted during the year.

Export of Power generated from biomass to APSPDCL was stopped from 3 July 2020 to 18 July 2020
and from 12 Jan 2021 to 26 Jan 2021 due to scheduled maintenance. APERC increased the variable cost
to Rs. 5.01 for FY 2020-21. Generation of revenue through exports of power stopped w.e.f 26th March,
2021 consequent upon completion of agreement entered with APSPDCL. APSPDCL is not willing to
extend the agreement. Hence, Company is in the process of finalising a third party for sale of power.

The generation of power from Wind Energy Generators (WEGs) has declined to 118.70 lakh units as
against 124.28 lakh units in the previous year. As a result, revenue from sale of power from Wind Energy
Generators decreased to Rs.341.61 lakhs from Rs.356.02 lakhs. It is mainly due to increase of grid failure
from 5.38% to 8.95%. Payments from TANGEDCO continue to be delayed by about 2 years.

Segment-wise or Product-wise performance:
Segment-wise performance of the Company is at Note No. 31 to the Accounts.
Outlook:

The Company expects the Government to recognize the inverted duty structure for Soap Noodles and
correct the anomaly to enable the industry to face the competition from import of soap noodles effectively.
The demand for Glycerine, one of the By-product generated from production of Fatty Acids, improved
recently due to its increased usage in sanitizers and soaps for containment of COVID-19. Hence, demand
for soap noodles and soap may also be expected to continue during the forthcoming period.

In order to cater to the additional toilet soap requirements of major customers, Company modified
certain equipment in the existing Soap Plant by spending about Rs.2 Crores to suit different requirements
of customers. Quality improvement, production optimisation and reduction of manual operations are
achieved due to these modifications.

In view of increase in the requirements of medical oxygen, due to increase in the spread of second wave
of COVID-19, Government banned supply of industrial oxygen. Hence, Company obtained license for
manufacture of Medical Oxygen from Drug Control Administration Authority. However, the converted
industrial oxygen for medical use is not permitted for ICU patients as a matter of abundant caution.
Hence, Company is supplying oxygen only to non-ICU patients availing treatment in various Government
and private hospitals. The demand for medical oxygen is expected to continue for some more period.

Risks and Concerns:

The wide fluctuations in raw material prices in the international market affect the prices of final products
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which may result in conditions sometimes favourable or at other times unfavourable to the Company, in
spite of taking precautions to avoid risks in price fluctuations.

Generation of power by Biomass Power Plant depends on availability of biomass and its cost. Generation
of power by wind mills depends on wind velocity and the policy of TANGEDCO to prioritize evacuation
over the other sources of energy available to it. The profitability of Wind Energy Generators largely
depends upon the purchase price fixed by the Government for purchase of energy from renewable
sources of energy as a promotional measure. The Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) entered with APSPDCL
by the Company for export of Power for a period of 20 years was completed on 25 March 2021.
Company approached APSPDCL and AP Transco for extension of PPA. However they are not willing to
extend the agreement even at a reduced tariff. Hence, Company is in the process of fanilising a third
party for sale of power. Since quantum of power is very less and is inconsistent Company's options are
limited.

Internal Control System and their adequacy:

The Company has proper and adequate internal control procedures commensurate with its size and
nature of business. These internal control procedures ensure protection to the resources of the Company
and compliance with the policies, procedures and statutes.

The internal controls are supplemented by internal audit by M/s. Mastanaiah& Co., Chartered
Accountants, Guntur. The internal controls and internal audit ensure that appropriate financial records
are available for preparing financial statements and other data for maintaining accountability of assets.
The Report of the Auditors on Internal Financial Controls under Sec.143(3)(i) of the Act is provided as
Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report.

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance:

The operations of Toilet Soap & Soap Products and Fatty Acids improved by around 13% and 2%
respectively. However the operations of Biomass Power and Wind Power declined by around 8% and
4% respectively. The Profit Before Interest and Depreciation decreased by around 13% due to reduction
of other income when compared to previous year.

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people

employed:

The Company employed 767 persons as on 31 March 2021 both in the factory and office. The
Management of the Company maintains good relations with the employees. There have been no labour
problems since the inception of the Company in 1980.
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Details of significant changes in key financial ratios.

Ratio 2020-21|2019-20 |Change % Explanation for change
1) Debtors Turnover 6.76 6.38 5.96 --
2) Inventory Turnover 29.81 25.07 18.91 --
3) Interest Coverage Ratio 24.34 22.48 8.27 --
4) Current Ratio 3.67 3.53 3.97 --
5) Debt Equity Ratio 0.01 0.04 (75) | Decrease in debt
6) Operating Profit Margin(%) 2.85 4.10 (30.73) | Decrease in operating profit
7) Net Profit Margin (%) 2.41 2.80 (14.01) --
Details of change in Return On Net Worth
Ratio 2020-21]2019-20 |Change % Explanation for change
Return on Net Worth 0.068 0.067 2.01 | Increase in Profit After Tax due

to exercise of option permitted
under Sec.115BAA of Income
Tax Act, 1961.
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Annexure - 15

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(Para C of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations)

Company's Philosophy on code of Corporate Governance:

The Company's Governance philosophy is based on trusteeship, transparency, professionalism,
accountability, honesty and integrity in its functions and conduct of business with due respect to laws and
regulations. It always believes that healthy Corporate Governance leads to operations and actions that
serve the underlying goal of continuously enhancing the value that the Company can create for the
stakeholders viz., Shareholders, Employees, Customers, Suppliers, Lenders, Government and other parties
having association with the company.

Company's governance framework is based on the following principles :

» Appropriate composition and size of the Board, with each member bringing in expertise in their respective
domains.

* Availability of information to the members of the Board and its Committees to enable them to discharge
their fiduciary duties.

» Timely disclosure of material operational and financial information to the stakeholders.
+ Systems and Procedures in place for internal control.

* The Management is the trustee of the shareholders' capital and not the owner.

Board of Directors :

Composition -

The present strength of the Board of Directors is ten of which nine are Non-Executive Directors including
five Independent Directors.

In the Financial Year 2020-21, the Board met four times. The meetings were held on -

25 June 2020, 11 August 2020, 07 November 2020 and 11 February 2021.

Familiarization programmes for Board Members

The Board members are provided with necessary documents, reports and internal policies to enable them
to familiarize with the Company's procedures and practices. Periodic presentations are made at the Board
and its committee meetings on business and performance updates of the Company and business strategy.
Detailed presentations on the Company's business segments were made at the meetings of the Directors
held during the year. Site visit to plant is organized for the Directors to enable them to understand the
operations of the company. Details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors are
disclosed at the website www:.jocil.in

The details of the composition of the existing Board of Directors, their shareholding, attendance of each
Director at the Board Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting, number of other Directorships and
Membership in Committees of other Companies held are as follows:

47



Jocil Limited

g No. of other | Memberships & -
;:: E b Directorships _Chairnamships 3 g b
=0 & incommittees | S £ |~
'_g ia 2 * Chairmanships of other § % 2; Relati ith
~ Name of the T §.§ L = held companiesheld | « ,, |29 ﬁa ion wi
Director & Designation Sg3m| & > @ | g | other Directors
L9 25s S| 5 S S | =
s © X oy e a e Z o Lo
< 48 o | B | E £ 2 £
© g 5 /8/s § 3 s |<
z 2|l |6 | = G
P Narendranath Chowdary, 25,000 NE 70 -] 4 3 1 4 Y
Chairman
J. Murali Mohan, Not E 1 - - 1 1 4 Y
Managing Director Applicable
Mullapudi Thimmaraja, 4,500 NE 2 - - 2 1 2 N |Father of
Director Mullapudi
Mrutyumjaya
Prasad
K. Srinivasa Rao, Director 3,25,092 NE - 6 - - - 4 Y
V.S. Raju, Director Nil INE 3 - - 3 1 4 Y
Subbarao V. Tipirneni, Directo Nil INE - 3] - - - 4 N
Mullapudi Mrutyumjaya 2250 NE -1 - - - 3 N |Son of
Prasad, Director Mullapudi
Thimmaraja
P Venkateswara Rao, Director Nil INE 1 1 - 1 - 4 N
Dr. Manjulata Dasari, Director 1006 INE 2 1 - 2 - 4 N
K. Ramaseshayya, Director Nil INE EO I B - - 4 N

Chairmanships / Memberships of Committees only includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee in public limited Companies other than Jocil Limited.

*E - Executive; NE - Non-Executive; INE - Independent & Non-Executive

e) Details of Directors directorships in other Listed Entities.

Sl. . Name of the listed entities where

N f the Direct Cat
No. ame ot the birector he / she is a Director ategory
1 P Narendranath Chowdary The Andhra Sugars Limited Executive Director

The Andhra Petrochemicals Limited | Executive Director

2 | J. Murali Mohan - -

3 | Mullapudi Thimmaraja The Andhra Sugars Limited Executive Director

The Andhra Petrochemicals Limited | Non-Executive Director
4 K. Srinivasa Rao - -

5 | VS.Raju The Andhra Sugars Limited Non-Executive
Independent Director
NCL Industries Limited Non-Executive

Independent Director
6 | Subbarao V. Tipirneni - -
7 | Mullapudi Mrutyumjaya - -
Prasad
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Sl. Name of the Director Name of the Ils.ted ell’ltltIeS where Category
No. he / she is a Director
8 | P Venkateswara Rao The Andhra Petrochemicals Limited | Non-Executive
Independent Director
9 | Dr. Manjulata Dasari The Andhra Sugars Limited Non-Executive

10 | K. Rama Seshayya

The Andhra Petrochemicals Limited | Non-Executive

Independent Director

Independent Director

Skills / expertise / competence of the Board of Directors

The Board in consultation with Nomination & Remuneration Committee identified the following skills/
expertise/competencies fundamental for the effective functioning of the Company which are currently
available with the Board:

) . Essential/
Skill A D t
ill Area escription Desirable
Risk & Compliance
a) Operational Identify key risks to the organisation related to each key area of | Essential
Risk Compliance | operations.
b) Legal Risk & Ability to monitor risk and compliance and knowledge of legal and | Essential
Compliance regulatory requirements.
¢) Financial & Experience in accounting and finance to analyse statements, assess | Essential
Audit financial viability, contribute to financial planning, oversee budgets
and oversee funding arrangements.
d) Technology Knowledge of IT governance and systems including privacy, data | Desirable
management and security.
Strategy & Policy
a) Strategy Ability to identify and critically assess strategic opportunities and | Essential
threats to the organisation. Develop strategies in contest to our
policies and business objectives.
b) Policy Ability to identify key issues for the organisation and develop | Essential
Development appropriate policy parameters within which the organisation should
operate.
¢) Crisis Ability to constructively manage crisis, provide leadership around | Essential
Management solutions and contribute to communications strategy with

stakeholders.
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. . Essential/
Skill A D t
ill Area escription Desirable
3. Industry
a) Industry Experience and knowledge with respect to the industry in which the | Essential
Specific Skills Company operates.
4. Management & Leadership
a) Executive Experience in evaluating performance of senior management, and | Essential
Management oversee strategic human capital planning. Experience in industrial
relations and organisational change management programmes.
b) Leadership Make decisions and take necessary actions in the best interest of the | Essential
organisation, and represent the organisation favourably. Analyse
issues and contribute at board level to solutions.
¢) Negotiation Possess excellent negotiation skills, with the ability to drive | Desirable
stakeholder support for board decisions.
5. Board Conduct
a) Ethics and Understand role as director and continue to self-educate on legal | Essential
Integrity responsibility, ability to maintain board confidentiality, declare any
conflicts.
b) Contribution Ability to constructively contribute to board discussions and | Essential
communicate effectively with management and other directors.
6. Personal
a) Diversity Adds gender, age and/or ethnic diversity to the Board. Diversity can | Desirable
lead to better board outcomes.
b) Previous Board Has director experience (past or present) on other public company | Essential
Experience or private company Boards.
¢) Board Training Has completed formal training in director role and duties including | Desirable
training in governance and risk.
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At present, all our Directors possess the above skills. The eligibility of a person to be appointed as a
Director of the Company is dependent on whether the person possesses the requisite skill sets identified
by the Board as above and whether the person is a proven leader in running a business that is relevant
to the Company's business or is a proven academician in the field relevant to the Company's business.
The Directors so appointed are drawn from diverse backgrounds and possess special skills with regard
to the industries/fields from where they come.

The Board confirms that in the opinion of the Board, the independent directors fulfil the conditions
specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are
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independent of the management. All the Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations
and confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under section 149(6) of the Act
and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations.

During the year under review no independent director has resigned from the Board.
Audit Committee :

The Audit Committee comprises of three members and the Chairman is an Independent Director. All the
members including the Chairman of the Committee are Non-Executive Directors.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings held and attended are as follows:

Director Position Meetings held Meetings attended
V.S. Raju Chairman -INED 4 4
Mullapudi Thimmaraja Member - NED 4

Subbarao V. Tipirneni Member -INED 4 4

INED - Independent Non-Executive Director

NED - Non-Executive Director

During the period under review, four meetings of the Committee were held on 25 June 2020, 11 August 2020,
07 November 2020 and 11 February 2021.

Managing Director, Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors and Cost Auditors attended the Audit Committee

Meetings to answer the queries raised by the Committee members.

Secretary &DGM (Finance) acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

Broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee include -

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company.
Approval of payment for any other service by the auditors.

Oversight of financial reporting process and the disclosure of financial information

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.
Examination of the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties.
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary.

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

Investigation of any activity within its terms of reference.

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

Review of the functioning of Whistle Blower Mechanism.
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Appointment of internal auditors and review of internal audit reports.
Appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Review of compliance of the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee :

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of four members and two of them are
Independent Directors. All the members are Non-Executive Directors. The composition of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings held and attended are as follows :

Director Position Meetings held Meetings attended
V.S. Raju Chairman - INED 1 1

P Narendranath Chowdary Member - NED 1 1
Mullapudi Thimmaraja Member - NED 1 1
Subbarao V. Tipirneni Member - INED 1 1

INED - Independent Non-Executive Director NED — Non-Executive Director

During the period under review, one meeting of the Committee was held on 25 June 2020. The Managing
Director attended the meetings to answer the queries raised by the Committee members. Secretary &DGM
(Finance) acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

Terms of reference in brief as specified by the Board of Directors —
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To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management
in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board for their appointment and removal.

To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors
and to review its implementation and compliance.

To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and
recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other employees.

The Company is having Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated by Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. The policy contains criteria for
performance evaluation of Independent Directors. The criteria, among others - exercise of objective
independent judgment in the best interests of the Company, ability to contribute and monitor corporate
governance practices, adherence to code of conduct, willingness to devote time, contribution in development
of strategy, ability to present his/ her views convincingly in a diplomatic way, listens and takes on Board
the views of other members etc.



5.

a)

b)

C)

Jocil Limited

Remuneration of Directors

Sitting fees is paid to Non-Executive Directors in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

Sitting fees paid for attending meetings of the
Name of the Director Board of Directors / Committees of Directors
Rs.
P Narendranath Chowdary 1,20,000
Mullapudi Thimmaraja 70,000
K. Srinivasa Rao 80,000
V.S. Raju 1,50,000
Subbarao V. Tipirneni 1,50,000
Mullapudi Mrutyumjaya Prasad 65,000
P Venkateswara Rao 1,00,000
Dr. Manjulata Dasari 90,000
K. Rama Seshayya 80,000

Non-Executive Directors do not have any pecuniary relationship with the Company except for the payment
of sitting fee payable to them.

Shri J. Murali Mohan, Managing Director has been paid the following remuneration during the year in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V therein:

Salary : Rs. 60,50,000
House Rent Allowance : Rs. 30,25,000
Commission : Rs.  34,72,116
Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds : Rs.  16,05,300
Other Perquisites : Rs. 4,10,097
Value of Earned Leave provided : Rs. 30,94,700
Contribution to Group Gratuity : Rs. 4,32,692
Total Rs. 1,80,89,905

Except commission, no other performance linked incentive is paid to Managing Director and the
performance criteria for payment of remuneration to Managing Director is determined by the Board of
Directors as per the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The same is
finally approved by the shareholders.

The appointment of Managing Director is on a contract for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 16 February 2021 and
there is no provision for notice period or severance fee on either side.

None of the Directors are provided with Stock options.
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6. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Company has Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprising of five directors under the Chairmanship
of a Non-executive Director to specially look into shareholders issues including share transfer, transmission,
issue of duplicate certificates and redressing of shareholder complaints.

The composition and the details of meetings held of Stakeholders Relationship Committee are given below.

Director Position Meetings held | Meetings attended
P Narendranath Chowdary Chairman 1 1
J. Murali Mohan Member 1 1
Mullapudi Thimmaraja Member 1 1
M. Mrutyumjaya Prasad Member 1 1
Dr. Manjulata Dasari Member 1 1

During the period under review one meeting of the Committee was held on 25 June 2020.

M/s.XLSoftech Systems Ltd, 3, Sagar Society, Road No.2, Banjara Hills, HYDERABAD - 500 034 acts as the
Company's Share Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA). Sri K. Raghuram, Secretary & DGM (Finance) of the

Company acts as the Compliance Officer to the Committee.

The Company has not received any complaints during the year from the shareholders. Accordingly, as on

31 March 2021 there were no pending complaints from the shareholders.

7. General Body Meetings :

The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under :

Financial Year Date Time Place

2017-2018 29-09-2018 | 3.30 PM | Regd. Office, Dokiparru, Guntur Dist., A.P
2018-2019 21-09-2019 | 3.30 PM | Regd. Office, Dokiparru, Guntur Dist., A.P
2019-2020 24-09-2020 3.30 PM | Regd. Office, Dokiparru, Guntur Dist., A.P

The special resolutions passed by the members at the previous three Annual General Meetings are as follows:

a) 2017-18 - Nil
b) 2018-19 -Nil
¢) 2019-20 -

i) Reappointment of Managing Director for a period of 3 years w.e.f.16 February 2021

ii) Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company for revision of Sitting Fees payable

to Directors for attending Board and Committee Meetings.

There was no occasion to pass Special Resolutions through postal ballot on any of the matters required to be
so passed under the provisions of the Companies Act 2013. Further no such proposal is under consideration for

the shareholders' approval in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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Means of Communication

Quarterly results approved by the Board are usually published in Business Standard (English) and
Visalandhra (Telugu) newspapers. In addition to this, the Company is communicating its results to National
Stock Exchange where the shares are listed. Further, the quarterly results are also placed on the company's
website, www.jocil.in. No presentations have been made to institutional investors or to the analysts.

General Shareholder Information

a) Annual General Meeting
Date and Time 1 22-09-2021 at 3.30 p.m.

Venue : Registered Office :
Jocil Ltd., Dokiparru, Medikondur Mandal,
Guntur District, A.P

b) Financial Year ;2020 -21
¢) Dividend Payment Date : 24-09-2021
Date of Book Closure : 11-09-2021 to 18-09-2021
d) Listing on Stock Exchanges . National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai — 400 051.

The Company has paid the Listing Fees for the year
2020-2021 to NSE.

e) Stock Code : ISIN — INE839G01010

f) Stock Market data -

In Rs. per Share

Month _ Total Traded

High Low Close Average Shares
Price Price Price Price Qty. in Nos.
Apr-20 225.05 90.00 | 225.05 | 180.03 23805
May-20 230.00 140.00 142.00 170.67 19584
Jun-20 184.30 142.10 149.00 158.47 16548
Jul-20 185.00 145.45 173.15 167.87 18339
Aug-20 | 218.70 165.95 185.00 | 189.88 37576
Sep-20 201.45 160.20 163.90 175.18 11559
Oct-20 174.65 153.35 173.60 | 167.20 4318
Nov-20 | 179.10 152.50 161.95 | 164.52 6095
Dec-20 187.40 157.50 180.10 175.00 7205
Jan-21 198.05 148.80 151.00 | 165.95 7234
Feb-21 186.00 152.05 159.05 165.70 8217
Mar-21 164.00 139.00 143.75 148.92 4929

55



Jocil Limited

g)

h)

k)
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The company has been complying with all the listing requirements of the stock exchange and the securities
of the company continue to be traded in the exchange without any suspension from the beginning.

Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA)

Share transfer system : The Board of Directors delegated the power of transfer of securities to the Share
Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA). In accordance with the Proviso to Regulation 40(1) of the Listing
Regulations, effective from April 01, 2019, transfer of shares of the Company shall not be processed
unless the shares are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. Accordingly, shareholders holding
equity shares in physical form are urged to have their shares dematerialized so as to able to freely transfer

XL Softech Systems Ltd.,

3, Sagar Society, Road No. 2
Banjara Hills, Hyderabad-500 034.
Tel : 040-23545913/914/915

Fax : 040-23553214

Email : xIfield@gmail.com

them and participate in various corporate actions.

Shareholding pattern as on 31 March 2021.

S.No. | Category No. of shares | % of holding
1 Promoters 48,86,500 55.02
2 Financial Institutions -- --
3 Mutual Funds -- --
4 Banks -- --
5 Foreign Institutional Investors -- --
6 Non-Resident Indians 39724 0.45
7 Bodies Corporate 222397 2.50
8 Clearing Members 14617 0.16
9 HUF 142013 1.61
10 Indian Public 3575899 40.26

Total 88,81,150 100.00
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Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March 2021.

Shareholdings of nominal Shareholders Share Amount
value of shares held (Rs.)
Nos. % In Rs. %
Upto 5,000 4389 84.26 4803420 5.41
5,001 - 10,000 344 6.60 2658960 2.99
10,001 - 20,000 205 3.94 3030160 3.41
20,001 - 30,000 78 1.50 1950500 2.20
30,001 - 40,000 32 0.61 1119970 1.26
40,001 - 50,000 32 0.61 1465760 1.65
50,001 - 1,00,000 73 1.40 5073550 5.71
1,00,001 & above 56 1.08 68709180 77.37
Total : 5,209 100.00 8,88,11,500 | 100.00

1) Dematerialisation of Shares

Electronic / Physical %
NSDL - 1791930 20.18
CDSL - 6259117 70.47
Physical - 830103 9.35

90.65% of Company's Paid-up Equity Share Capital has been demateralised upto 31 March 2021
(90.20% upto 31 March 2020). Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized
form.

m) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible instruments: Nil

n) The risk of price variation in raw materials and finished goods in which the Company deals is partly
covered by purchasing raw materials as and when sales are booked for future delivery. There is no market
provision for hedging the risks in price variations of the commodities in which the Company deals. Foreign
exchange requirements for imports are covered by foreign exchange earnings from exports. In view of the
availability of this natural hedge no further hedging is done for foreign exchange risks either for imports
or for exports.
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0) Plant locations Dokiparru Village,
Medikondur Mandal
Guntur District, A.P,

Pin : 522 438.

Wind Power Units :
Kurichampatti Village,
V.K. Pudur Taluk
Tirunelveli Dist., T.N.,
Pin : 627 860.

Surandai Village,
V.K. Pudur Taluk
Tirunelveli Dist., T.N.,
Pin : 627 860.

Kasturirangapuram Village,
Radhapuram Taluk
Tirunelveli Dist., T.N.,

Pin : 627 112

Velayuthampalayam Village,
Dharapuram Taluk

Tirupur Dist., TN.,

Pin : 638702

p) Address for correspondence . Dokiparru,
Medikondur Mandal
Guntur Dist., A.P,
Pin : 522 438.

Telephone No.

0863-2290190/92

Mobile No. 9848139135
Fax No. 0863-2290090
E-mail jocil@jocil.net
Website www.jocil.in

q) Revision in credit ratings is provided in point no.7 of Directors Report.
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Dividend Declared for the last 7 Years

Financial Year Dividend Dividend per
Declaration Date Share of Rs.10
each - Rs.

2020-21 22 September 2021 3.00
2019-20 24 September 2020 3.00
2018-19 21 September 2019 1.00
2017-18 29 September 2018 2.00
2016-17 28 September 2017 3.00
2015-16 14 March 2016 7.00
2014-15 19 September 2015 6.00

Transfer of unpaid/unclaimed amounts/shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund

During the year under review, the Company has credited Rs.4,34,118 being the unpaid/unclaimed dividend
for the year 2012-13 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) pursuant to Section 124 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ('The Rules).

Further, pursuant to the provisions of the Rules 4,448 (Cumulative Total of 37,624) equity shares being
the shares of those shareholders who have not claimed the dividends for a continuous period of 7 years
were credited to the IEPF.

Other Disclosures :

There were no materially significant pecuniary or business transactions of the Company with its promoters,
Directors or the Management, or their relatives etc., that may have potential conflict with the interests of
the Company at large.

The Company enters into contracts from time to time with its Holding Company, Directors, Companies
and Firms in which the Directors are interested. These contracts are in the ordinary course of Company's
business and the concerned Directors regularly make full disclosures to the Board of Directors regarding
the nature of their interest. Full particulars of contracts entered into with the parties in which Directors are
directly or indirectly concerned or interested are entered in the Register of Contracts maintained under
Section 189(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same is placed at every Audit Committee Meeting and
Board Meeting for information and approval.

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company and no penalties, strictures on the Company
by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any Statutory Authority, on any matter related to Capital markets during the
last three years.
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The Company has established Vigil Mechanism as required under Sec. 177(10) of the Companies Act,
2013 for directors and employees to report genuine concerns as prescribed in the policy. The policy
provides adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and make provision
for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. No
personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements. The non-mandatory requirements not
complied with will be adopted at the appropriate time.

The Company is not having any subsidiaries.

Policy on dealing with related party transactions of the Company is available at www.jocil.in

Hedging for commodity price risks is as discussed at Item No. 9 (n) above.

The company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement.

Certificate from a company secretary in practice with respect to non-disqualification of Directors is annexed
vide Annexure - 1.

There are no instances of non-acceptance of any recommendations of any committee of the Board.

Details of total fees for all services paid by the company to the statutory auditors, M/s. Chevuturi Associates,
Vijayawada are as follows.

For Statutory Audit Rs. 4,00,000
For Limited Review Report Rs. 30,000

Total Rs. 4,30,000

The Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate Governance under Sub Para 2 to 10 in
Para C of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations.

Implementation of discretionary requirements under Part E of Schedule Il to Listing Regulations
a) The Chairman's office expenses incurred in performance of his duties are not reimbursed by the Company.

b) Half yearly declaration of financial results including summary of significant events have not been sent to
the household of shareholders.

¢) There are no audit qualifications in the Company's financial statement for the year under reference.
It is always the Company's endeavour to present financial statements without any qualification.
d) The Company is having separate persons appointed to the posts of Chairman and Managing Director.

e) The Internal Auditors to the Company reports directly to the Audit Committee.
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13. Compliance with provisions dealing with Corporate Governance in Listing Regulations.

a) The constitution of Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee are in accordance with Regulation 17 to 20 of Listing Regulations.
In terms of the company's corporate governance policy, all statutory and other significant and material
information are placed before the Board to enable it to discharge its responsibility of supervision of the

company as trustees of the shareholders.

Adequate powers are delegated to the Committees to take suitable decisions on the issues arising to

meet the exigencies of the business of the Company.

b) Regulation 21 dealing with constitution of Risk Management Committee is not applicable to the

Company.

¢) The Company is having Vigil Mechanism for Directors and the Employees to report genuine concerns as

required under Regulation 22.

d) The Company formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and on dealing with

related party transactions in compliance with Regulation 23 and complies with the same.
e) The Company is not having subsidiary companies.

f) The Company complies with the obligations with respect to Independent Directors and Employees
including Senior Management, Key Managerial Persons, Directors and Promoters under Regulation

25 and 26.

g) Quarterly Compliance Report on Corporate Governance is filed with the NSE along with material related

party transactions if any as required under Regulation 27.

h) The Company maintains functional website www.jocil.in containing the information required under
Clauses (a) to (z) of Regulation 46 (2).
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To
The Members of
Jocil Limited
Dokiparru (V), Medikondur (M),
Guntur (Dist), Andhra Pradesh - 522438

We have examined the following documents:
i) Declaration of non-disqualification as required under Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act);

ii) Disclosure of concern or interests as required under Section 184 of the Act; (hereinafter referred to as

'relevant documents')

as submitted by the Directors of Jocil Limited (the Company') bearing CIN: L28990AP1978PLC002260 and
having its registered office at Dokiparru (V), Medikondur (M), Guntur (Dist), Andhra Pradesh - 522438, to the
Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board') for the Financial Year 2020-21 and relevant registers, records,
forms and returns maintained by the Company and as made available to us for the purpose of issuing this
Certificate in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Clause 10(i) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015. We have considered non-disqualification to include non-debarment by Regulatory/Statutory
Authorities.

It is the responsibility of Directors to submit relevant documents with complete and accurate information in

accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Ensuring the eligibility for appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification.

Based on our examination as aforesaid and such other verifications carried out by us as deemed necessary and
adequate (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in), in our opinion
and to the best of our information and knowledge and according to the explanations provided by the Company,
its officers and authorised representatives, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company, as listed hereunder for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by Securities and Exchange Board of India/

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.
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SI. No.| Name of Director DIN
1. Pendyala Narendranath Chowdary 00015764
2. Jagarlamudi Murali Mohan 00114341
3. Mullapudi Thimmaraja 00016711
4. Kandimalla Srinivasa Rao 00381090
5. Vuppalapati Sitarama Raju 00101405
6. Tipirneni Venkata Subbarao 00337027
7. Mullapudi Mrutyumjaya Prasad 01500271
8. Parvataneni Venkateswara Rao 06387165
9. Dasari Manjulatha 02788338
10. Kanuri Rama Seshayya 05162760

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This Certificate has been issued at the request of the Company to make disclosure in its Corporate Governance
Report of the financial year ended 31st March, 2021.

For NEKKANTI S.R.V.V.S. NARAYANA & CO.
Company Secretaries
(NEKKANTI S.R.V.V.S. NARAYANA)
Place : Hyderabad Proprietor
Date : 31 May 2021 M.No.F7157, C.PN0.7839
UDIN: FO07157C000398438

Annexure - 16

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER PARA D OF
SCHEDULE V TO LISTING REGULATIONS

To
The Members of Jocil Limited

This is to affirm that the Board of Directors of Jocil Limited has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Directors and
Senior Management Personnel in compliance with the provisions of para D of Schedule V to Listing Regulations.
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have confirmed the compliance of provisions
of the said code for the financial year ended 31st March 2021.

Place : Guntur J. MURALI MOHAN
Date : 10 June 2021 Managing Director
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Annexure - 17
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To

The Members of Jocil Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Jocil Limited for the year ended
31st March, 2021, as stipulated in Para E of Schedule V to Listing Regulations.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
has been limited to a review of the procedures and implementations thereof adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said clause. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the representations made by the directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000632S

RAGHUNADHA RAO BALINENI
Partner
ICAl Memb. No. 028105

Camp : Guntur
Date : 10 June 2021
UDIN: 21028105AAAABC7260

Annexure- 18

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT / UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

Equity shares in the Demat Suspense Account or -- NIL

Unclaimed Suspense Account

Annexure - 19

DETAILS OF SHARES TRANSFERRED TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
Unclaimed Equity shares credited to the IEPF (Pertaining to the year 2012-13)

Opening Date of No. of shareholders No. shares | Type of Cumulative
Sl. Balance as | Transfer to whose shares were transferred Shares No. of
No. on IEPF in FY transferred to IEPF to transferred Shares
01.4.2020 | 2020-21 InFY IEPF during transferred
2020-21 | Cumulative |y 5050-21 to IEPF
1 33,176 01.10.2020 7 52 4448 Physical/ 37,624
Demat
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF JOCIL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JOCIL LIMITED (“the Company"), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as "the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
accompanying financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the State of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2021, its Profit, total comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report
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including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
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communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

68

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.
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2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure-A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Chevuturi Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000632S

(RAGHUNADHA RAO BALINENI)
Place : Camp : Guntur Partner

Date : 10 June 2021 (Membership No: 028105)
UDIN: 21028105AAAABC7260

ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements"
section of our report to the members of JOCIL LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2021.

We report that:
1 In respect of its fixed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b) The company has a programme of physical verification to cover all items of fixed assets in a phased
manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
business. Pursuant to the programme, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the management
during the year and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

2. In respect of its inventories:

a) According to the information and explanations furnished to us, the Company has physically verified its
inventories during the year and no discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Consequently, clauses (iii)(a),(b) and (c) of
paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act with respect to the loans and investments made.
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In respect of deposits accepted by the company, it has complied with the directives issued by Reserve Bank

of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules

framed there under. According to the information furnished to us, no order has been passed on the

Company by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any

Court or any other Tribunal for non-compliance with the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the Company pursuant to the

rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act

and we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and

maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed audit of the same.

a) According to the information furnished to us, the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate

authorities, the undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-

tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs duty, Cess and any other statutory dues wherever applicable to it

during the year.

b) There were no undisputed statutory dues in arrears in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State

Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs duty, Cess and other material statutory dues as

at the date of the Balance Sheet under report, for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.

¢) According to the information furnished to us, the following amounts of Value added tax, Electricity

duty and Customs duty have been disputed by the Company, and hence were not remitted to the

authorities concerned at the date of the Balance Sheet under report.

Name Nature of Dues Amount Amount Period to Forum
of the involved unpaid which it where dispute
Statute (Rs.) (Rs.) relates is pending
AP VAT Availment of 15,89,620 10,40,037 2005-06 STAT, Vizag
Input tax credit 13,05,462 2,24,341 2006-07
6,43,893 43,650 2007-08
Purchase tax on 25,91,715 - 2012-16
Biomass 40,97,107 30,72,830 2008-12
AP Electricity | Electricity duty 6,26,83,172 4,91,72,549 2001-02 to | Chief Electrical
Duty Act, 1939 2020-21 Inspector,
Govt. of AP
Customs Classification of 32,03,124 30,42,968 2012-13 CESTAT,
Act, 1962 goods imported Chennai
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to us by the Company, there
were no defaults in repayment of dues to banks. However, the company has not borrowed any loans
from financial institutions, government or raised any funds by way of issue of debentures.

The company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. During the year, the company has not borrowed any term loans from the
banks or from any other financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the
company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of the records of
the company, the company has paid/provided remuneration for managerial personnel in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V of the Act.

The company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly reporting under provisions of para 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records of the
company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the provisions of section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them. Accordingly paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Chevuturi Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No0.000632S

(RAGHUNADHA RAO BALINENI)
Partner
(Membership No: 028105)

Place : Camp : Guntur

Date

: 10 June 2021

UDIN: 21028105AAAABC7260
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ANNEXURE “B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JOCIL LIMITED ("the Company") as of
31st March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of directors of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI"). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAl and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chevuturi Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No0.000632S

(RAGHUNADHA RAO BALINENI)
Partner
(Membership No: 028105)
Place : Camp : Guntur
Date : 10 June 2021
UDIN: 21028105AAAABC7260
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets
Financial assets

i) Investments

ii) Loans

iii) Other financial assets
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
i) Investments
ii) Trade receivables
iii) Cash and cash equivalents
iv) Loans
v) Other financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets

Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Short-term borrowings
ii) Trade payables

a) Total outstanding dues of micro and

small enterprises

b) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro and small enterprises

iii) Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Corporate Information

Significant accounting policies and notes forming

integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date :

For CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.000632S
RAGHUNADHA RAO BALINENI, Partner
Membership No. 028105

Camp : Guntur

10th June, 2021

UDIN: 21028105AAAABC7260
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For and on behalf of the Board

P. NARENDRANATH CHOWDARY

Jocil Limited

(Amount in Rs.)

As at As at
31-3-2021 31-3-2020
47,81,84,548 47,75,11,835
5,52,01,225 4,59,88,519
34,14,142 61,23,097
6,28,53,201 1,69,52,849
83,28,070 65,93,038
2,77,84,334 1,41,37,057
63,57,65,520 56,73,06,395
77,55,25,131 72,71,28,818
14,00,54,384 12,26,535
85,32,49,598 80,89,69,495
8,35,33,908 24,21,92,008
3,93,661 19,22,684
52,72,623 1,47,82,718
2,89,09,119 3,64,29,683

188,69,38,424

183,26,51,941

252,27,03,944

239,99,58,336

8,88,16,250
187,22,86,969

8,88,16,250
171,64,01,668

196,11,03,219

180,52,17,918

8,91,000 8,91,000
1,02,64,088 96,47,136
3,56,86,024 6,44,99,536
4,68,41,112 7,50,37,672
2,03,72,824 8,31,12,018

34,69,46,514 32,34,23,898
2,51,94,264 2,49,43,879
11,36,44,953 8,31,43,718
86,01,058 50,79,233
51,47,59,613 51,97,02,746
56,16,00,725 59,47,40,418

252,27,03,944

239,99,58,336

Chairman

Managing Director

Secretary & DGM (Fin.) (CFO)



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2021

REVENUE
Revenue from operations

Other income
Total Income
EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Jocil Limited

(Amount in Rs.)

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories of finished goods,

Stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before exceptional items and tax

Exceptional Items

Profit Before Tax

Tax Expense:

Current tax

Short provision of Income-tax in earlier years

Deferred tax (credit) / charge
Profit After Tax

Other comprehensive income

A. Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to

profit and loss account (net of tax)
a) Changes in fair value of investments
b) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans

Total comprehensive income

Earnings Per Share - basic and diluted

Year ended Year ended
Note 31-3-2021 31-3-2020
19 565,37,02,755 446,24,97,535
20 1,31,53,946 5,60,56,058
566,68,56,701 451,85,53,593
21 430,04,45,175 313,32,88,383
22 1,71,30,513 (2,78,52,225)
23 29,77,09,969 28,90,32,105
24 88,88,324 1,02,42,532
25 5,60,79,584 5,92,05,434
26 83,23,16,017 87,81,55,376
551,25,69,582 434,20,71,605
15,42,87,119 17,64,81,988
15,42,87,119 17,64,81,988

27
4,70,00,000 5,00,00,000
4,543 6,64,218
(2,88,13,512) 8,99,497
13,60,96,088 12,49,18,273
4,59,09,852 (3,90,77,455)
5,22,811 (68,73,993)
18,25,28,751 7,89,66,825
36 15.32 14.07

(PAT before OCI/weighted average no. of shares)

Corporate information

Significant accounting policies and notes forming

integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date :

For CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.000632S
RAGHUNADHA RAO BALINENI, Partner
Membership No. 028105

Camp : Guntur

10th June, 2021

UDIN: 21028105AAAABC7260

For and on behalf of the Board
P NARENDRANATH CHOWDARY
J. MURALI MOHAN

K. RAGHURAM

Chairman

Managing Director

Secretary & DGM (Fin.) (CFO)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

L CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Add/Less: Adjustments for :
Depreciation

Finance Costs

Interest income

Assets Written off

Profit on sale of assets

Fair value changes in current Investments
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans
Dividends received

Operating profit before working capital changes

Add/Less: Adjustments for working capital
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

2020-21 2019-20
Rs. Rs.
15,42,87,119 17,64,81,988

5,60,79,584 5,92,05,434
88,88,324 1,02,42,532
(90,12,226) (1,36,75,075)
29,07,256 68,412
(3,06,677) (2,766)
(1,70,239) (11,162)
5,22,811 (68,73,993)
(30,87,730) (84,58,713)
21,01,08,222 21,69,76,657

(4,83,96,313)
(4,11,05,905)

(15,70,03,287)
(12,25,07,694)

Trade payables 5,84,13,012 20,89,71,349
Cash generated from operations 17,90,19,016  14,64,37,025
Less: Direct taxes paid 3,74,98,991 5,89,78,356
Net cash from Operating activities A 14,15,20,025 8,74,58,669
II. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets/Capital work in progress (7,56,73,477) (5,24,97,284)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 4,94,213 12,000
Proceeds from sale/(Investments) in Mutual Funds (13,88,27,849) 2,95,63,376
(Net of Redemption)
Interest received 90,12,226 1,36,75,075
Dividend received 30,87,730 84,58,713
Other Bank balances (9,30,044) (71,89,101)
Net cash used in Investing activities B (20,28,37,201) (79,77,221)
111. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from /(Repayment) of borrowings (6,27,39,194) (2,10,500)
Finance Costs (88,88,324) (1,02,42,532)
Dividends & Dividend Distribution Tax paid (2,66,43,450) (1,07,06,696)
Net cash used in financing activities C (9,82,70,968) (2,11,59,728)

Net (Decrease)/ Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
(Refer note.no.10A)
Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents

a)
"Statement of Cash Flow"

b) Changes in liability arising from financing activities :

Particulars Opening Net

Balance Cash Flow
Long term borrowings - -
Short term borrowings 8,31,12,018 (6,27,39,194)

(refer note no.17)

As per our report of even date :

For CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.000632S
RAGHUNADHA RAO BALINENI, Partner
Membership No. 028105

Camp : Guntur

10th June, 2021

UDIN: 21028105AAAABC7260

For and on behalf of the Board
P NARENDRANATH CHOWDARY
J. MURALI MOHAN

K. RAGHURAM
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(15,95,88,144) 5,83,21,720
21,88,48,137  16,05,26,417
592,59,993  21,88,48,137
(15,95,88,144) 5,83,21,720

Non Cash
Changes

Chairman

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind As-7

(Rs.)

Closing
Balance

2,03,72,824

Managing Director

Secretary & DGM (Fin.) (CFO)
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a)

b)

)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Jocil Limited (hereinafter referred to as Jocil) is engaged in the manufacture of Stearic Acid, Fatty Acids,
Soap Noodles, Toilet Soap, Glycerine and Industrial Oxygen. The manufacturing facilities of Jocil and its
Registered Office are located at Dokiparru Village, Medikondur Mandal, Guntur District, Andhra Pradesh.
It is also having a 6 MW Biomass Cogeneration Captive Power Plant to meet the power requirements of
the manufacturing activity and surplus power is sold to AP Transco. Jocil is also having 4 Wind Energy
Generators in the State of Tamil Nadu and the power generated is sold to Tamil Nadu Generation and
Distribution Corporation Limited. Jocil is a subsidiary to The Andhra Sugars Limited (ASL), Tanuku, W.G.
District, Andhra Pradesh. As on 31-03-2021, ASL owned 55.02% of the Jocil's equity share capital.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act ("The Act') read together with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 (as amended). The financial statements have also been prepared with relevant
presentation requirements of the Act.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis of
accounting except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

Operating cycle

All assets have been classified as current or non-current as per the company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the schedule Il to the act and Ind AS-1 Presentation of Financial statements, based
on the nature of the products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents.



d)

i)

iii)

iv)

Jocil Limited

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the company's financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management
of the Company to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.

The following are the critical judgments and estimates that have been made in the process of applying the
company's accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements.

Depreciation / amortization and useful lives of property plant and equipment and intangible assets:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated/amortised based on the useful lives
specified under schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and
residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation/amortization to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company's
historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation/amortization for future periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Recoverability of trade receivable:

Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining
whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of
the counterparty, past history of receivables, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and
any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non payment.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the fair value is measured using valuation techniques,
including the discounted cash flow model, which involves various judgments and assumptions. The
Company also engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation in certain cases. The
appropriateness of valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation model are reviewed by the
Management.

Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
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v)

vi)

vii)

viii)

ix)
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estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgment
to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions
and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units (CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
model is used.

Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
cash loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Income Taxes:

The Company's tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in estimating budgeted profits
for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount
expected to be paid/ recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Defined benefit obligations:

The Company uses actuarial assumptions viz., discount rate, mortality rates, expected rate of return on
plan assets, salary escalation rate etc., to determine such employee benefit obligations.

Other estimates:

The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the Company estimates
the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analysing historical payment patterns, customer
concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and current economic trends. If the financial condition of a
customer deteriorates, additional allowances may be required.



Jocil Limited

The judgments, estimates and underlying assumptions are made with the management's best knowledge of

the business environment and are reviewed on an on going basis. Accounting estimates could change from

period to period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the

financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements.

a)

b)

<)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualified as an asset is measured at initial recognition at
Cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment recognized as at 1st April 2015 measured as per the accounting
standards notified under section 133 of the Act read together with Rule 7 of companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, which the company elected in accordance with Ind As 101. Costs directly attributable to acquisition

are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by the management.

The company identifies and determines cost of each part of PPE separately, if the part has a cost which is
significant to the total cost of that items of PPE and has useful life that is materially different from that of
the remaining items.

Advances paid for acquisition of Property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances under other non-current assets. Cost of the assets not put to use before such
date are disclosed under 'Capital Work-in-progress'. Any subsequent expenditure relates to property,
plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance
costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. Items of spare parts are recognized
as Property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of PPE. The cost and related depreciation
are eliminated from the PPE upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gain or losses are

recognized in statement of profit and loss.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight line basis from the date they

are available for use.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing Costs, that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of assets, that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use, are capitalised as part of the cost of
qualifying asset when it is possible that they will result in future economic benefits and the cost can be
measured reliably.
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d)

e)

f)
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Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values based on useful

lives as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 as follows:
i) Under straight line method in respect of plant and machinery of wind power division.
ii) Under written down value method on the remaining assets of the company.

iii) The intangible assets, being computer software is amortized over a period of 5 years on straight line
method.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year end.
Inventories

i) Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

ii) Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods includes appropriate portion of overheads etc.,

iii) Raw materials, stores and spares are valued at cost using weighted average method.

iv) Work-in-progress, raw materials, stores, spares, material in transit, are valued at cost except where the
net realizable value of the finished goods they are used in is less than the cost of finished goods and
in such an event, if the replacement cost of such materials etc., is less than their book values, they are
valued at replacement cost.

v) By-products and scrap are valued at net realizable value.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

i) Revenue from sale of products is recognised when the entity satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring the promised goods to customers and the goods are transferred when the customer
obtains control over the goods and the company retains no effective control over the goods sold.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration taking into account contractually defined

terms of payment. Revenue is reduced for discounts, rebates and other similar allowances.

When there is any uncertainty as to the measurement or collectability of consideration, revenue

recognition to the extent of amount of uncertainty is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.
ii) Amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as GST are excluded from Revenue.

iii) Revenue realized on processing charges is recognized to the extent of completion of job as per the
agreements/arrangements with the concerned parties.

iv) Power purchased from other units is accounted at market price at which the power is purchased from

external party.



g)

h)
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v) Interest income is recognized using effective interest method.
vi) Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Taxes on income

Income tax expense comprises the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is determined at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities,
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each year and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be

recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or subsequently enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes
in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized as income or expense in the year of
enactment. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

Segment reporting

The operating segments of the entity are identified based on the revenues earned and expenses incurred
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance for which discrete financial information
is available.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company.

Inter segment revenue has been accounted for based on the market related prices.

Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating
activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included under "Unallocated expenses".

Retirement benefits

The Company provides retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund, Superannuation and Gratuity

etc., contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution scheme, is made at the prescribed rates to the
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k)

Provident Fund Commissioner and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. There is no other

obligation other than the contribution payable.

Certain employees of the company are eligible for superannuation and company has no obligation
beyond its monthly contribution to LIC. The periodic contribution is charged to the statement of profit
and loss account.

Gratuity, a defined Benefit scheme is covered by a Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance policy with LIC. The
cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations
being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial losses and
gains, the effect of changes to the asset ceiling and actual return on plan assets, in excess of the yield
computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation, is reflected in the
balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which

they occur. Such remeasurement losses/gains are not reclassified to profit or loss subsequently.

The liability in respect of compensated absences due or expected to be availed within one year from the
balance sheet date is recognized on the basis of undiscounted value of estimated amount required to be
paid. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one
year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation using projected unit credit

method at the end of each year.
Research & development expenditure

Revenue expenditure is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss and Capital expenditure is added to the cost
of Fixed Assets in the year in which it is incurred.

Foreign exchange transactions

The functional currency of the company is the Indian rupee and the financial statements are presented in
Indian rupee.

Transactions in foreign currency are initially accounted at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction, and adjusted appropriately, with the difference in the rate of exchange arising on actual

receipt/payment during the year.

At each Balance Sheet date

)

i)

84

Foreign currency denominated monetary items are translated into the relevant functional currency at
exchange rate at the balance sheet date. The gains and losses resulting from such translations are included
in net profit in the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currency denominated non-monetary items are reported using the exchange rate at which they

were initially recognized.

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in
statement of profit and loss.
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Impairment of assets
i) Financial assets (other than at fair value)

The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets isimpaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.
The company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit

losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.
ii) Non financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e higher of the fair value less cost of sale and value in use)
is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generates cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset
or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount and the carrying amount of the asset is increased

to its revised recoverable amount subject to maximum of carrying amount.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that the
company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can
be made. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is the present value
of the expenditure to be required to settle the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or (ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. The company does not recognise contingent liabilities

but the same are disclosed in the notes.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realized.
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n)

Financial instruments

Initial recognition:

The company recognizes financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities
(other than the financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement:

i)

i)

iii)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases
where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments
which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued through
profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial asset

iv)
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The company de-recognises financial assets when the contractual right to the cash flows from the asset
expires or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
effective method is a method of calculating the amortization cost of a financial liability and of allocating
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interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial liability

0)

p)

9

r)

The company de-recognises financial liabilities when the company's obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the initial carrying amount of the financial liabilities and their redemption
value is recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the contractual terms using the effective

interest method.
Earning per equity share

Basic earning per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders
of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares during the period. The company did not

have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the years presented.

The number of equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and
bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of financial statements by the
board of directors.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method whereby the profit for the period is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financial activities of the company are segregated.

Dividends

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders i.e the year
in which the dividends are approved and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of

declaration by the company's board of directors.
Government Grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the company will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received .

Government grants related to revenue are recognized on a systematic basis in the Statement of Profit and
Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as deferred revenue in the Balance sheet and transferred
to the statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related

assets.
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Carrying amounts of

Land

Buildings

Plant and Equipment
Furniture and Fixtures
Vehicles

Office Equipment

Total

As at 31st
March, 2021
Rs.
87,05,117
3,08,24,029

42,52,00,643

16,74,045
89,14,465
28,66,249

47,81,84,548

Jocil Limited

As at 31st
March, 2020
Rs.
87,05,117
3,40,42,687
42,77,71,533
23,90,451
26,52,453
19,49,594

47,75,11,835

Note: Working capital loans obtained by the company from Union Bank of India and SBI are secured by way of
second charge on fixed assets of the company on pari passu basis.

3. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Carrying value - At Cost

As at 31st March, 2019
Additions

Capitalised during the year
As at 31st March, 2020
Additions

Capitalised during the year

As at 31st March, 2021

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gross Carrying value
- At Cost (Deemed Cost)

As at 31st March, 2019
Additions

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2020
Additions

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2021
Depreciation

As at 31st March, 2019
Depreciation charge for the year
On disposals

Rs.

3,94,73,307
4,60,32,946

(3,95,17,734)

4,59,88,519
5,50,02,463
(4,57,89,757)

5,562,01,225

Computer
Software
Rs.

1,42,00,995

Total
Rs.

1,42,00,995

1,42,00,995

1,42,00,995

1,42,00,995

1,42,00,995

53,30,541
27,47,357

53,30,541
27,47,357
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As at 31st March, 2020 80,77,898 80,77,898
Depreciation charge for the year 27,08,955 27,08,955
On disposals - -
As at 31st March, 2021 1,07,86,853 1,07,86,853
Net Book Value

As at 31st March, 2020 61,23,097 61,23,097
As at 31st March, 2021 34,14,142 34,14,142

Carrying amounts of

Computer software

4. NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

A. Investment in equity instruments

(At fair value through Other Comprehensive Income)

(i) Quoted - Trade

(@) 4,436 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in

Union Bank of India
(ii) Quoted - Non Trade

(@) 10,07,981 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
in The Andhra Petrochemicals Limited

(b) 200 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
in The Industrial Finance Corporation of India
(c) 11,360 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in

Industrial development bank of India

Total Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments  (A)

B. Investmentin Government securities
(a) National savings certificates
Total investment in Government securities  (B)

Total investment (A+B)

Aggragate amount of quoted investments
- At cost
- Market value
- Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

90

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2021 March, 2020
Rs. Rs.
34,14,142 61,23,097
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2021 March, 2020
Rs. Rs.

1,51,046 1,23,004
6,22,42,827 1,65,81,287
2,400 810
4,37,928 2,19,248
6,28,34,201 1,69,24,349
19,000 28,500
19,000 28,500
6,28,53,201 1,69,52,849
1,35,36,374 1,35,36,374
6,28,34,201 1,69,24,349
19,000 28,500
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Category wise - Investments as per Ind AS 109 Classification
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Fair value of  Dividends Fair value of Dividends
Investments recognised Investments recognised

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Financial assets measured at:
(i) Fair value through other comprehensive income
a) 4,436 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully 1,51,046 - 1,23,004 -
paid up in Union Bank of India
b) 10,07,981 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully  6,22,42,827 - 1,65,81,287 15,111,972
paid up in The Andhra Petrochemicals Ltd.
¢) 200 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 2,400 - 810 -
in The Industrial Finance Corporation of India
d) 11,360 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully 4,37,928 - 2,19,248 -
paid up in Industrial development bank of India
Total 6,28,34,201 - 1,69,24,349 15,11,972
4. CURRENT INVESTMENTS (At FVTPL*)
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2021 March, 2020
Quoted and non-trade investments in mutual funds Rs. Rs.
ABSL Liquid Fund - Dividend - Daily Reinvest Plan 1,00,06,129 -
(99866.547 Units @100.19 each)
S.B.I. Savings Fund - Regular Plan Growth 2,00,13,009 -
(614440.694 Units @32.55 each)
HDFC-Liquid Fund - Dividend - Daily Reinvest Plan 10,00,28,927 4,36,417
(98084.884 Units @1019.82 each)
SBI-Liquid Fund - Dividend - Daily Reinvest plan - 790118
Nil, (Previous Year 787.561 Units)
Nippon Mutual Fund - Daily Dividend Reinvest Plan 1,00,06,319 -
(6545.470 Units @1528.74 each)
Total current investments 14,00,54,384 12,26,535

*FVTPL : Fair value through profit and loss
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5.
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LOANS
Particulars

Unsecured, considered good
a) Loans

Total

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Security deposits with Government

authorities and others

Claims and other receivables

Total

OTHER ASSETS

Unsecured, considered Good
